
High Peak Borough Council

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Thursday, 18 May 2017

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: The Cafe, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

The internal and external auditors will be available to meet committee 
members from 6.15 to 6.30 pm. Any councillors who are not able or do 
not wish to attend the session at 6.15 pm are requested to join the 
meeting with the Executive Councillors and officers at 6.30 pm.

10 May 2017

PART 1
1. Apologies for absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 

 i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
ii) Other Interests. 

3. To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

4. Planned Audit Fee for 2017/18 (Pages 9 - 12)

5. External Audit Update (Pages 13 - 32)

6. Review of Risk Management Strategy (Pages 33 - 52)

7. Risk Management Update (Pages 53 - 64)

8. Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2017/18 (Pages 65 - 72)

9. 2016/17 Internal Audit Periodic Report February 2017 to April 2017 (Pages 73 - 92)

10. Part 2 
To resolve that the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

11. To approve the Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 93 - 94)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information))

Public Document Pack



SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Audit & Regulatory Committee
Councillor A Barrow Councillor C Boynton
Councillor G Claff Councillor J Douglas
Councillor L Grooby Councillor S Helliwell
Councillor N Longos Councillor J Pritchard
Councillor R Quinn Councillor D Robins
Councillor F Sloman Councillor J Walton



1

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday, 14 February 2017 at 6.30 pm in The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens, 
Buxton

Present: Councillor J Pritchard (Chair) 

Councillors A Barrow, C Boynton, J Douglas, L Grooby, S Helliwell, D Kerr, 
N Longos, R Quinn, D Robins, F Sloman and J Walton

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors G Claff

17/40 COUNCILLOR PRITCHARD
(Agenda Item )

Tributes were paid to Councillor Pritchard who announced that he would be 
standing down as Chair of the Committee at the next Annual Council 
meeting.  Councillors, officers and the Council’s external auditors thanked 
Councillor Pritchard for his dedication and impartial chairmanship of 
meetings of the committee over the last 10 years.

17/41 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 29 September 2016 be approved 
as a correct record. 

17/42 TO RECEIVE DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST ON ANY MATTERS BEFORE 
THE COMMITTEE
(Agenda Item 2)

There were no declarations made.

17/43 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2015/16
(Agenda Item 4)

Councillors were presented with a summary of the results of External Audit 
work carried out for the year ending 31st March 2016. There had been no 
significant matters arising and the auditors had issued an unqualified 
opinion.  Reference was made to the restriction on rent levels, progress 
made with regards to the Buxton Crescent project and previous difficulties 
encountered in the bank reconciliation process which had improved. The 
Council had good arrangements in place to deliver future savings.

RESOLVED:

High Peak Borough Council

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Audit & Regulatory Committee
Tuesday, 14 February 2017

2

That the Annual Audit Letter for 2015/16 be noted.

17/44 ANNUAL GRANT CERTIFICATION LETTER 2015/16
(Agenda Item 5)

The report summarised work undertaken to certify the Housing Benefit 
Subsidy claim submitted by the Authority which found that the Council had 
appropriate arrangements to compile a complete, accurate and timely claim 
for audit certification.  An assurance statement on the Council's annual 
Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts Return for 2015/16 was also provided. 

RESOLVED:

That the Annual Grant Certification Letter 2015/16 noted.

17/45 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2016/17
(Agenda Item 6)

Councillors considered the External Audit Plan for 2016/17.  This included 
matters relating to materiality, significant risks, the approach to securing 
value for money and the audit cycle.

RECOMMENDED:

That Council be recommended to note the External Audit Plan for 2016/17.

17/46 EXTERNAL AUDIT - INFORMING THE RISK ASSESSMENT 2016/17
(Agenda Item 7)

The purpose of the report was to contribute towards the effective two-way 
communication between auditors and the Council's Audit and Regulatory 
Committee.  There were a series of questions and management responses 
on the following areas:-

 Fraud
 Laws and regulations
 Going concern
 Accounting estimates
 Related party transactions

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

17/47 AMENDMENTS TO ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Agenda Item 8)

The report sought approval to make changes to the authority’s accounting 
policies.  The amendments related to the Accruals of Income and 
Expenditure policy and the Property Plant and Equipment policy and were 
primarily in response to the need to streamline accounting procedures to Page 4



Audit & Regulatory Committee
Tuesday, 14 February 2017

3

produce the annual statements within a tighter deadline. They also 
represented a more targeted and effective use of resources.

RESOLVED:

That the changes to accounting policies as detailed in the report be 
approved.

17/48 APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS - PUBLIC SECTOR AUDIT 
APPOINTMENTS OPT-IN
(Agenda Item 9)

Following the demise of the Audit Commission new arrangements were 
needed for the appointment of external auditors. The Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 required authorities to either opt in to the appointing 
person regime or to establish an Auditor Panel and conduct their own 
procurement exercise. The Council would need to consider the options 
available and put in place new arrangements in time to make a first 
appointment by 31 December 2017.

RECOMMENDED:

That the Council be recommended that the Authority opts in to the 
appointing person arrangements made by Public Sector Audit Appointments 
(PSAA) for the appointment of external auditors.

17/49 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - PROGRESS AGAINST 2015/16 
ACTION PLAN
(Agenda Item 10)

Regulations required the Council to conduct a review each financial year of 
the effectiveness of its system of internal control and approve an Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS).  The AGS Action Plan (Appendix 1 of the 
report) outlined the progress made against the required actions as at the 
end of December 2016.

RESOLVED:

That the progress information contained within the report be noted.

17/50 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE - MID-YEAR REPORT 2016/17
(Agenda Item 11)

The Council’s Treasury Management performance in 2016/17 was 
scrutinised in compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2009 
and generally accepted good practice.  Discussion took place on the 
arrangements in place for borrowing and lending funds.

RESOLVED:

That the Treasury Management position (as at 31st December 2016) be 
noted. Page 5



Audit & Regulatory Committee
Tuesday, 14 February 2017

4

17/51 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT (TMSS) 2017/18
(Agenda Item 12)

The purpose of the report was to allow members of the Committee to 
consider and endorse the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 
2017/18 to ensure that its capital and treasury activities for the next four 
years were affordable and properly managed.  Discussion took place with 
regards to credit ratings and borrowing from reserves.

RECOMMENDED:

That the Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 
2017/18 be recommended to Council for approval.

17/52 INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER
(Agenda Item 13)

The Audit Charter provided a framework for the operation of the Internal 
Audit service and was required by the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS), which came into effect on 1st April 2013. PSIAS 
required the Charter to be approved by the ‘Board’, which for the Council’s 
purpose was the Audit & Regulatory Committee.

RESOLVED:

That the Council’s updated Internal Audit Charter be approved.

17/53 2016/17 INTERNAL AUDIT PERIODIC REPORT SEPTEMBER 2016 TO 
JANUARY 2017
(Agenda Item 14)

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 required the Council to “undertake an 
effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control 
and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing 
standards or guidance”.  In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards, the Audit Manager must report periodically to the Audit Committee on 
the internal audit activity’s performance relative to its plan. 

It was reported that all audit recommendations had been agreed, that 100% of 
2016/17 audit recommendations had been implemented and that 70% of the Audit 
Plan had been completed. 

RESOLVED:

That the progress information contained within the report be noted.

17/54 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
(Agenda Item )

RESOLVED:

Page 6



Audit & Regulatory Committee
Tuesday, 14 February 2017

5

That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following items 
because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 3 and 5 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

17/55 TO APPROVE THE EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 16)

RESOLVED:

That the Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 29 September 2016 be 
approved as a correct record.

17/56 BUXTON CRESCENT & THERMAL SPA PROJECT - ORAL UPDATE
(Agenda Item 17)

The Committee received an oral update relating to the Buxton Crescent and 
Spa Project and associated risks.

RESOLVED:

That the update be noted.

The meeting concluded at 7.52 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Audit  and Regulatory Committee 

High Peak Borough Council

Progress Report and Update 

Year ended 31 March 2017
May 2017

Phil Jones

Engagement Lead

T 0121 232 5232

E phil.w.jones@uk.gt.com

Allison Rhodes

Audit Manager

T 0121 232 5285

E allison.rhodes@uk.gt.com

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 5



Audit and Regulatory Committee progress report and  update – High Peak Borough Council

2© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Introduction

Members of the Audit and Regulatory Committee can find further useful material on our website www.grant-thornton.co.uk, 

where we have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications and 

articles, including:

• Income generation is an increasingly essential part of providing sustainable local services (March 2016); 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-income-generation-report-local-leaders-are-ready-to-be-more-commercial/

• CFO Insights – reviewing council's 2015/16 spend (December 2016); http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/cfo-

insights-reviewing-councils-201516-spend/

• Fraud risk, 'adequate procedures', and local authorities (December 2016); 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/fraud-risk-adequate-procedures-and-local-authorities/

• Brexit and local government; (April 2017)  http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/a-global-britain-needs-more-

local-government-not-less/ and (December 2016) http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-local-government--

transitioning-successfully/

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to receive

regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement 

Manager.

This paper provides the Audit and Regulatory Committee 

with a report on progress in delivering our responsibilities 

as your external auditors. 

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 

reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 

affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 

benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 

of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

P
age 14

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-income-generation-report-local-leaders-are-ready-to-be-more-commercial/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/a-global-britain-needs-more-local-government-not-less/


Audit and Regulatory Committee progress report and  update – High Peak Borough Council

3© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress at  8 May 2017

2016/17 work Completed Comments

Fee Letter 
We are required to issue a 'Planned fee letter for 2016/17' by the end of 

April 2016 April 2016

We have also recently issued the fee letter for 2017/18, with no change to the 

fee proposed. This is reported to this meeting of the Audit and Regulatory 

committee.

Accounts Audit Plan
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Council

setting out our proposed approach in order to give an opinion on the 

Council's 2016-17 financial statements.

February 20167

This was presented to the Audit and Regulatory Committee in February.

Interim accounts audit 
Our interim fieldwork visit plan included:

• updated review of the Council's control environment

• updated understanding of financial systems

• review of Internal Audit reports on core financial systems

• early work on emerging accounting issues

• early substantive testing

• Value for Money conclusion risk assessment.

March 2017

Interim audit findings for the work completed to date are included in this report 

(pages 5-6). 

As part of our formal communication between auditors and the council's Audit 

and Regulatory Committee, as 'those charged with governance' we prepare a 

specific report which covers some important areas of the auditor risk 

assessment where we are required to make inquiries of management and the 

Audit Committee under auditing standards. This was also presented to the Audit 

and Regulatory Committee in February.

P
age 15



Audit and Regulatory Committee progress report and  update – High Peak Borough Council

4© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress at 8 May 2017

2016/17 work Completed Comments

Final accounts audit
Including:

• audit of the 2016/17 financial statements

• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts

• proposed Value for Money conclusion

• review of the Council's disclosures in the consolidated accounts against 

the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

Kingdom 2015/16  

Planned for June -

July 

We are planning to complete our  fieldwork and report our findings to 

management by 31st July as part of the transition to the earlier closedown and 

audit cycle that is required from 2018.

To help the Council prepare appropriate evidence to support the financial 

statements, we have provided a schedule of the working papers that we expect 

and discussed the implications of emerging accounting matters with finance 

staff.

The audit is not brought to close until the Audit and Regulatory Committee have 

met to approve the financial statements and to consider our Audit Findings 

Report. This meeting is expected to take place in September 2017.

Value for Money (VfM) conclusion
The scope of our work is unchanged to 2015/16 and is set out in the final 
guidance issued by the National Audit Office in November 2015. The Code 
requires auditors to satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use 
of resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as; "in all significant respects, 
the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly 
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and 
sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a conclusion overall 
are:

• Informed decision making

• Sustainable resource deployment

• Working with partners and other third parties

Field work in March 

– July, formal 

conclusion reported 

by 30 September 

2017

We have set out the result of our risk assessment and the proposed focus of our 
work at pages 7-8.

The results of our VfM audit work and the key messages arising will be reported 
in our Audit Findings Report.

We will include our conclusion as part of our report on your financial statements 
which we will give by 30 September 2017.

Other areas of work 
We provide a range of workshops, along with network events for members

and publications to support the Council.
Ongoing

Finance staff attended our workshop covering changes to accounting standards 

and the Code of Practice, and emerging issues and future developments, to 

support officers involved in the preparation of the Financial Statements. 

Further details of the publications that may be of interest to the Council are set 

out from page 13.

P
age 16



Audit and Regulatory Committee progress report and  update – High Peak Borough Council

5© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Results of  interim audit work

Work performed Conclusion

Internal audit We have completed a high level review of internal audit's overall 

arrangements. We have also considered the outcome of internal 

audit's work on the Council's key financial systems to date.

Overall, we have concluded that the arrangements for internal audit contribute to an 

effective internal control environment.

Our review of internal audit work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on 

our audit approach.

Entity level controls We have obtained an understanding of the overall control 

environment relevant to the preparation of the financial statements 

including:

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values

• Commitment to competence

• Participation by those charged with governance

• Management's philosophy and operating style

• Organisational structure

• Assignment of authority and responsibility

• Human resource policies and practices

Our work has identified no material weaknesses in these overall controls which are 

likely to adversely impact on the Council's financial statements

Journal entry 
controls

We have reviewed the Council's journal entry policies and 
procedures as part of determining our testing strategy and have not 
identified any material weaknesses which are likely to adversely 
impact on the Council's control environment or financial statements. 

Further work will be completed at the accounts visit to extract journals with 'unusual' 

criteria for detailed review.

Walkthrough testing We have completed walkthrough tests of the Council's controls 

operating in areas where we consider that  there is a risk of material 

misstatement to the financial statements – namely employee 

remuneration and operating expenses.

Our work has not identified any issues which we wish to bring to your attention. 

Internal controls have been implemented by the Council in accordance with our 

documented understanding.

Our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on our planned audit 

approach. 

The findings of  our interim audit work, and the impact of  our findings on 
the accounts audit approach, are summarised below.

P
age 17



Audit and Regulatory Committee progress report and  update – High Peak Borough Council

6© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Results of  interim audit work

Work performed Conclusion

IT controls We have completed a review of the general IT control environment as part of our 

cyclical approach. 

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are likely to 

adversely impact on the Council's financial statements. We have made 

two recommendations:

• to review users access rights and permissions at least every six 

months and when changes are made to user accounts. 

• to review staff assigned administrator access rights at least every six 

months. As noted previously, the number of Northgate staff with 

admin access is particularly high due to the way in which support is 

provided by a number of support engineers, however it remains 

important that this is reviewed and dormant accounts are removed). 

Employee 

remuneration

In our testing completed to date we have:
• Performed a trend analysis for the first 10 months of the year to identify areas which 

may require additional procedures.
• tested a sample of items of payroll expenditure from months 1 to 10 to source 

documents and to contract documentation to confirm the accuracy of pay.

Our work has not identified any issues that we wish to highlight for your 

attention at this stage. 

Further testing will be carried out at our accounts audit visit.

Operating 
expenditure

We tested a  initial sample of operating expenses from months 1 to 10 to ensure they 

are valid expenses and have been accurately accounted for in the correct period.

Our work has not identified any issues that we wish to highlight for your 

attention at this stage. 

Further testing will be carried out at our accounts audit visit.

Income We have confirmed the receipt of significant grant to the Council's bank account 

(revenue support grant, housing benefits and small business rates relief grant). 

We have selected an initial sample of other income items (which excludes those from 

council tax or business rates) and confirmed receipt to the Council's bank account.

Our work has not identified any issues that we wish to highlight for your 

attention. Further testing will be carried out at our accounts audit visit.

Opening 
balances

We have confirmed that the opening balances brought into the general ledger for 
2016/17 are in agreement with the audited balance sheet for 2015/16.

No matters to bring to your attention.

We have carried out some substantive testing at this early stage of  the audit 
and this will be extended at the accounts audit.

P
age 18



Audit and Regulatory Committee progress report and  update – High Peak Borough Council

7© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Value for Money
Background

The Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 ('the Act') and the NAO Code of Audit 
Practice ('the Code') require us to issue a conclusion on whether the Council has put 
in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources. This is known as the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion. 

The National Audit Office (NAO) issued its guidance for auditors on value for 
money work in November 2015.

The Act and the NAO guidance state that auditors are only required to report by 
exception where they are not satisfied that NHS bodies have proper arrangements in 
place to secure value for money. However, we are required to carry out sufficient 
work to satisfy ourselves that proper arrangements are in place at the Council.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate: 

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly 
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers 
and local people. 

This is supported by three sub-criteria as set out  in the table to the right.

Sub-criteria Detail

Informed decision 

making

• Acting in the public interest, through demonstrating and applying the 

principles and values of good governance

• Understanding and using appropriate cost and performance 

information to support informed decision making and performance 

management

• Reliable and timely financial reporting that supports the delivery of 

strategic priorities

• Managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound system of 

internal control.

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

• Planning finances effectively to support the sustainable delivery of 

strategic priorities and maintain statutory functions

• Managing assets effectively to support the delivery of strategic 

priorities

• Planning, organising and developing the workforce effectively to 

deliver strategic priorities.

Working with 

partners and other 

third parties

• Working with third parties effectively to deliver strategic priorities

• Commissioning services effectively to support the delivery of 

strategic priorities

• Procuring supplies and services effectively to support the delivery 

of strategic priorities.

Risk assessment

We completed an initial risk assessment based on the NAO's guidance. In our initial 
risk assessment, we considered:

• our cumulative knowledge of the Council, including work performed in previous 
years in respect of the VfM conclusion and the opinion on the financial 
statements

• illustrative significant risks identified and communicated by the NAO in its 
Supporting Information

• any other evidence which we consider necessary to conclude on your 
arrangements

We have identified significant risks which we are required to communicate to you. The 

NAO's Code of Audit Practice defines ‘significant’ as follows: 

A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that 
the matter would be of interest to the audited body or the wider public. Significance has 
both qualitative and quantitative aspects. 

We have set out overleaf the risks we have identified, how they relate to the Code sub-
criteria, and the work we propose to undertake to address these risks. The results of our 
VfM audit work and the key messages arising will be reported in our Audit Findings Report. 

P
age 19



Audit and Regulatory Committee progress report and  update – High Peak Borough Council

8© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Value for money

Significant risk Link to sub-criteria Work proposed to address

The Council has historically managed its finances well and 

has consistently achieved savings. It is on course to achieve 

an underspend  against its general fund budget for 2016/17. 

However, following the most recent settlement, and with the 

expected reduction in government grant, the Council has 

identified that it must secure savings of over £2.1m for the 

general fund over the lifetime of the four year MTFP.

The challenge that this saving requirement presents to the 

longer term financial sustainability of the Council is regarded 

a significant risk to the VFM conclusion.

This links to the Council's arrangements for planning 

finances effectively to support the sustainable delivery of 

strategic priorities and using appropriate cost and 

performance information to support informed decision 

making.

We propose to meet with key officers to discuss key strategic 

challenges and the Council's proposed response and consider 

reports to members to:

• review the outturn position for 16/17 and the budget plans 

for 17/18 

• review the Council's progress in updating its medium term 

financial plan and efficiency and rationalisation strategy

(which includes major procurement activities)

The Council's  Business Plan for the housing revenue 

account, is affected by external factors including the 

government announcements of rent reductions that must be 

applied in future.   

We need to consider the Council's arrangements to update 

its Business Plan during 2016/17 in light of this and other 

developments , and how it is seeking to address the longer 

term financial sustainability of the housing revenue account. 

This area represents a risk to the VFM conclusion.

This links to the Council's arrangements for utilising 

assets effectively to support the delivery of strategic 

priorities, and planning finances effectively to support the 

sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and maintain 

statutory functions.

We will consider how the Council have responded to the 

developments that impact upon its HRA Business Plan through 

discussions with officers and review of key documents and 

reports to Members.

P
age 20



Technical Matters

P
age 21



Audit and Regulatory Committee progress report and  update – High Peak Borough Council

10© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Highways network asset 
On 14 November CIPFA/LASAAC announced a deferral of the move to 

measuring the Highways Network Asset ('HNA') at depreciated replacement cost 

in local authority financial statements for 2016/17. This is due to delays in 

obtaining updated central rates information that was required for the valuations. 

CIPFA/LASAAC will issue an Update to the 2016/17 Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom to confirm this decision once it 

has completed the full due process before publication. CIPFA/LASAAC will 

review this position at its meeting in March 2017 with a view to implementation 

in 2017/18 and will consider whether central rates and the central assurance 

processes will be delivered in a timely manner to allow successful 

implementation. It expects that the 2017/18 Code will be on the same basis as 

planned for 2016/17, i.e. not requiring restatement of preceding year 

information.

In August, CIPFA published the 'Code of Practice on the Highways Network 

Asset (2016 Edition)' and additional guidance to aid the implementation process.

Telling the story – Changes in 2016/17 CIPFA
Code

CIPFA has been working on the 'Telling the Story' project, which aims to streamline the 

financial statements and improve accessibility to the user. This has resulted in changes to 

CIPFA's 2016/17 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

Kingdom ('the Code').

The main changes affect the presentation of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement ('CIES'), the Movement in Reserves Statement ('MIRS') and segmental 

reporting disclosures. A new Expenditure and Funding Analysis has been introduced.

The key changes are:

• the cost of services in the CIES is to be reported on basis of the local authority's 

organisational structure rather than the Service Reporting Code of Practice 

(SERCOP) headings

• an 'Expenditure & Funding Analysis' note to the financial statements provides a 

reconciliation between the way local authorities are funded and the accounting 

measures of financial performance in the CIES

• the changes will remove some of the complexities of the current segmental note

• other changes to streamline the current MIRS providing options to report Total 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (previously shown as Surplus and Deficit 

on the Provision of Services and Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

lines) and removal of earmarked reserves columns.

Delivering Good Governance
In April 2016, CIPFA and SOLACE published 'Delivering Good Governance in 

Local Government: Framework (2016)' and this applies to annual governance 

statements prepared for the 2016/17 financial year. The key focus of the 

framework is on sustainability – economic, social and environmental – and the 

need to focus on the longer term and the impact actions may have on future 

generations.

Local authorities should be:

• reviewing existing governance arrangements against the principles set out in 

the Framework

• developing and maintaining an up-to-date local code of governance, including 

arrangements for ensuring on-going effectiveness 

• reporting publicly on compliance with their own code on an annual basis and 

on how they have monitored the effectiveness of their governance 

arrangements in the year and on planned changes. 

The framework applies to all parts of local government and its partnerships and 

should be applied using the spirit and ethos of the Framework rather than just rules 

and procedures

P
age 22



Sector issues and developments

P
age 23



Audit and Regulatory Committee progress report and  update – High Peak Borough Council

12© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Local Government Finance Settlement
The final local government settlement for 2017/18 was 

published on 20 February. The settlement reflects the 

Government's aim that all councils will become self 

funding, with central government grants being phased 

out. This is year two of the four year offer, which has 

been accepted by 97% of councils. 

There is an expectation that councils will continue to 

improve efficiencies  with measures including further 

developments in digital technology, new delivery 

models and innovative partnership arrangements.

100% business rates retention

The announcement has an increased focus on business 

rates, with the expectation that local government will, at 

some point in the future, keep 100% of the income 

raised through business rates.  The exact details of the 

reforms are yet to be determined.  This includes 

confirming which additional responsibilities will be 

devolved to local government and funded through 

these retained rates. Pilots of the reforms are taking 

place across the country from April 2017.

The results of a recent Municipal  Journal survey  2017 
State of Local Government Finance  were published in 

February . 

http://downloads2.dodsmonitoring.com/downloads/Mi

sc_Files/LocalGovFinance.pdf

Respondents expressed concern about the lack of detail 

in the proposals, uncertainty around equalisation 

measures and the scale of appeals.  

Nearly 50% of Councils responding believe they will lose 

from the transition to 100% retention of business rates.  

Views were evenly split as to whether the proposals 

would incentivise local economic growth.

Social Care Funding 

Funding allocations reflect increased funding of social care with a 

stated £3.5 billion of funding for social care by 2019/2020.

In this year's settlement £240 million of new homes bonus has been 

redirected into  the adult social care grant.  In addition councils are 

once again be able to raise the precept by up to 3% for funding of 

social care.

Recognising that funding is not the only answer, further reforms are 

to be brought forward to support the provision of a sustainable 

market for social care.  There is an expectation that all areas of the 

country move towards the integration of health and social care 

services by 2020.

Paul Dossett Head of  Local Government in Grant 

Thornton LLP  has commented on the Government proposals 

for social care funding (see link for full article).

"The government’s changes to council tax and the social care 

precept, announced by the Secretary of State for DCLG as part of 

the latest local government finance settlement, will seem to many as 

nothing more than a temporary fix. There is real concern about the 

postcode lottery nature of these tax-raising powers that are intended 

to fund our ailing social care system."   

“Our analysis on social care shows that the most deprived areas in 

the UK derive the lowest proportion of their income from council 

tax. …Conversely, more affluent areas collecting more council tax 

will potentially receive a bigger financial benefit from these 

measures.” 

"Our analysis shows that the impact and effectiveness of the 

existing social care precept is not equal across authorities. So any 

further changes to tax raising powers for local government will not 

tackle the crisis of social care in our most disadvantaged 

communities and arguably make only make a small dent in the cost 

demands in our more affluent communities."

"Social care precept changes will 

not help those living in more 

deprived areas" 

"The UK has a long tradition of 

providing care to those who need it 

most. If that is to continue, the 

government must invest in a robust 

social care system that can cater 

for all based on needs and not on 

geography. From a taxpayer’s 

perspective this is a zero sum 

game. For every £1 not invested in 

social care, the cost to the NHS is 

considerably more"

National developments

Links: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-

government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-

government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-

changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-

wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/

P
age 24

http://downloads2.dodsmonitoring.com/downloads/Misc_Files/LocalGovFinance.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/


Audit and Regulatory Committee progress report and  update – High Peak Borough Council

13© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Pooling of  LGPS 

From 1 April 2018 £200bn of assets from 90 LGPS funds 

across England and Wales will be merged into six 

‘British Wealth Funds’. By pooling investment, costs can be 

reduced through economies of scale and through sharing of 

expertise, while the schemes can maintain overall investment 

performance. Pension funds will continue to be managed and 

maintained by the separate administering authorities. The 

selection of fund managers will be made by the investment 

pool operator on behalf of a pool of co-operating 

administrative authorities, while individual investment 

strategies, including asset allocation, will remain the 

responsibility of the individual administrative authority.  

Potentially eight pools are to be established across the country 

with total assets ranging from £13bn in both the LPP  and  

Wales pool, to £36bn in the Border to Coast pool.  It is 

expected that assets will be transferred to the pools as soon as 

practicable after 1 April 2018.  

Tasks to be completed by April 2018 include:

• creating legal structures for pools

• transferring staff

• creating supervisory boards/ committees

• obtaining FCA authorisations

• appointing providers

• assessing MiFID II implications

• determining pool structures for each asset type

The funds themselves will retain responsibility  for:

• investment strategy

• asset allocation

• having a responsible investment strategy

• reporting to employers and members

Governance arrangements 

There is  no mandatory membership of oversight 

structures. It is for  each pool to develop the proposals 

they consider appropriate. The majority of decision 

making remains at the local level and therefore the 

involvement of local pension boards in those areas would 

not change. Scheme managers should consider how best 

to involve their pension boards in ensuring the effective 

implementation of investment and responsible investment 

strategies by pools, which could include representation on 

oversight structures.

CIPFA in the recent article  Clear pools: the future of the 

LGPS highlights the need for good governance  

particularly  in view of  the complex web of stakeholders 

involved in investment pooling.  Robust governance will 

be vital to ensuring a smooth transition and continuing 

operation of the funds 

National developments

The CIPFA article is available at:

Link: http://www.cipfa.org/cipfa-

thinks/cipfa-thinks-articles/clear-

pools-the-future-of-the-lgps?

typical structure of 

LGPS Pool

P
age 25

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/ZpXABIg4kMcx?domain=email.cipfa.org.uk


Audit and Regulatory Committee progress report and  update – High Peak Borough Council

14© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Fixing our broken housing market
DCLG published its housing White Paper on 7 February 

2017. It opens with the statement:

“The housing market in this country is broken, and the 

cause is very simple: for too long, we haven’t built enough 

homes.”

It goes on to summarise three key challenges in the 

housing market.

1. Over 40 per cent of local planning authorities do not 

have a plan that meets the projected growth in 

households in their area. 

2. The pace of development is too slow. There is a large 

gap between permissions granted and new homes 

built. More than a third of new homes that were 

granted planning permission between 2010/11 and 

2015/16 have yet to be built.

3. The structure of the housing market makes it harder 

to increase supply. Housing associations have been 

doing well – they’re behind around a third of all new 

housing completed over the past five years – but the 

commercial developers still dominate the market.

The proposals in the White Paper set out how the 

Government intends to boost housing supply and, over 

the long term, create a more efficient housing market 

whose outcomes more closely match the needs and 

aspirations of all households and which supports wider 

economic prosperity.

It states that the challenge of increasing housing supply 

cannot be met by the government acting alone and 

summarises how the government will work with local 

authorities, private developers, local communities, housing 

associations and not for profit developers, lenders, and 

utility companies and infrastructure providers.

For local authorities, the government is:

• offering higher fees and new capacity funding to 

develop planning departments, simplified plan-

making, and more funding for infrastructure; 

• will make it easier for local authorities to take action 

against those who do not build out once permissions 

have been granted; and

• is interested in the scope for bespoke housing deals to 

make the most of local innovation. 

The government is looking to local authorities to be as 

ambitious and innovative as possible to get homes built 

in their area. It is asking all local authorities to:

• develop an up-to-date plan with their communities 

that meets their housing requirement (or, if that is not 

possible, to work with neighbouring authorities to 

ensure it is met); 

• decide applications for development promptly; and

• ensure the homes they have planned for are built out 

on time. 

The White Paper states that it is crucial that local 

authorities hold up their end of the bargain. It goes on to 

say that where local authorities are not making sufficient 

progress on producing or reviewing their plans, the 

Government will intervene. It also notes that where the 

number of homes being built is below expectations, the 

new housing delivery test will ensure that action is taken.

The White Paper goes on to consider in more detail:

• Planning for the right homes in the right places

• Building homes faster 

• Diversifying the market

• Helping people now

National developments

Challenge questions: 

• Have you been briefed on the 

White Paper and the 

implications for your statutory 

housing function?

Consultation on the White Paper recently closed 

on 2 May 2017.

The White Paper is available at:

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/syste

m/uploads/attachment_data/file/590464/Fixing

_our_broken_housing_market_-

_print_ready_version.pdf

P
age 26

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/590464/Fixing_our_broken_housing_market_-_print_ready_version.pdf


Audit and Regulatory Committee progress report and  update – High Peak Borough Council

15© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Integrated Thinking and Reporting

Focusing on value creation in the 

public sector  

Grant Thornton has seconded staff to the International 

Integrated Reporting Council on a pro bono basis for a 

number of years.

They have been working on making the principles of 

Integrated Reporting  <IR> relevant to the public sector  

and co-authored a recent report by CIPFA and the World 

Bank: Integrated thinking and reporting: focusing on value creation 

in the public sector - an introduction for leaders.

Around one third of global gross domestic product (GDP) 

is made up by the public sector and this is being invested 

in ensuring there is effective infrastructure, good 

educational opportunities and reliable health care. In many 

ways, it is this investment by the public sector that is 

helping to create the conditions for wealth creation and 

preparing the way for the success of this and future 

generations.

Traditional reporting frameworks, focussed only on 

historic financial information, are not fit-for-purpose for 

modern, multi-dimensional public sector organisations. 

Integrated Reporting supports sustainable development 

and financial stability and enables public sector 

organisations to broaden the conversation about the 

services they provide and the value they create.

The public sector faces multiple challenges, including:

• Serving and being accountable to a wide stakeholder 

base;

• Providing integrated services with sustainable 

outcomes;

• Maintaining a longer-term perspective, whilst 

delivering in the short term; and 

• Demonstrating the sustainable value of services 

provided beyond the financial.

The <IR> Framework is principle based and enables 

organisations to tailor their reporting to reflect their own 

thinking and strategies and to demonstrate they are 

delivering the outcomes they were aiming for.

Integrated Reporting can help public sector organisations 

deal with the above challenges by:

• Addressing diverse and often conflicting public 

accountability requirements;

• Focussing on the internal and external consequences 

of an organisation's activities;

• Looking beyond the 'now' to the 'near' and then the 

'far';

• Considering the resources used other than just the 

financial.

The report includes examples of how organisations have 

benefitted from Integrated Reporting.

CIPFA Publications

Challenge question: 

• Have you reviewed the CIPFA 

guide to Integrated Reporting 

in the public sector?

P
age 27



Grant Thornton

P
age 28



Audit and Regulatory Committee progress report and  update – High Peak Borough Council

17© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Income generation 
This report shares the insights into how 

and why local authorities are reviewing 

and developing their approach to income 

generation.
Local government is under immense financial pressure to 

do more with less. The 2015/16 spending review is forecast 

to result in a £13 billion funding hole by 2020 that 

requires With further funding deficits still looming, income 

generation is increasingly an essential part of the solution to 

providing sustainable local services, alongside managing 

demand reduction and cost efficiency of service delivery.

Local leaders are ready to be more commercial, and our 

report gives them the tools to maximise their ability to 

generate income and develop their income generation 

strategies by providing the following:

• Case study examples

• Local authority spend analysis, Councils’ business case 

for change - Amidst financial pressures, councils must 

generate income to keep delivering the best services for 

their area.

• Examples of innovative financial mechanisms , learning 

from innovative income generation practices -

Innovation is key to addressing the public sector’s 

challenges and making the most of the available 

opportunities.

• Critical success factors to consider - Local authorities 

have opportunities to generate additional income in 

many ways. However, understanding the needs of the 

area and the capabilities of their authority to ensure they 

select the most suitable option is key.

Our new research on income generation suggests that:

• councils are increasingly using income generation to 

diversify their funding base, and are commercialising in a 

variety of ways. This ranges from fees and charges 

(household garden waste, car parking, private use of 

public spaces), asset management (utilities, personnel, 

advertising, wifi concession license) and company spin-

offs (housing, energy, local challenger banks), through to 

treasury investments (real estate development, solar 

farms, equity investment).

• the ideal scenario to commercialise is investing to earn 

with a financial and social return. Councils are now 

striving to generate income in way which achieves 

multiple strategic outcomes for the same spend; 

examining options to balance budgets while 

simultaneously boosting growth, supporting vulnerable 

communities and protecting the environment.

• stronger commercialisation offers real potential for 

councils to meet revenue and strategic challenges for 

2020 onwards. Whilst there are examples of good 

practice and innovation, this opportunity is not being 

fully exploited across the sector due to an absence of a 

holistic and integrated approach to corporate strategy 

development (a common vision for success, 

understanding current performance, selecting 

appropriate new opportunities, the capacity and culture 

to deliver change). 

Download the income generation report here

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/t

he-income-generation-report-local-leaders-are-

ready-to-be-more-commercial/

Grant Thornton update

P
age 29

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/income-generation-councils-business-case-for-change/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-income-generation-report-local-leaders-are-ready-to-be-more-commercial/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-income-generation-report-local-leaders-are-ready-to-be-more-commercial/


Audit and Regulatory Committee progress report and  update – High Peak Borough Council

18© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Apprentice Levy-Are you prepared?
What is the levy?

The UK has been struggling on productivity, now estimated to 

be 20% behind the G7 average. Developing apprenticeships is 

set to play a key part in tackling this and bridging the skills gap.

Announced by government in July 2015, the levy is to 

encourage employers to offer apprenticeships in meeting their 

skill, workforce and training needs, developing talent internally. 

The levy is designed to give more control to employers, 

through direct access to training funds and creation of 

apprenticeships through the Trailblazer process.

What is the levy?

From April 2017, the way the government funds 

apprenticeships in England has changed. Some employers are 

required to pay a new apprenticeship levy, and there are 

changes to the funding for apprenticeship training for all 

employers.

All employers will receive an allowance of £15,000 to offset 

against payment of the levy. This effectively means that the 

levy will only be payable on paybill in excess of £3 million per 

year.

The levy will be payable through Pay As You Earn (PAYE) 

and will be payable alongside income tax and National 

Insurance.

Each employer will receive one allowance to offset against their 

levy payment. There will be a connected persons rule, similar 

the Employment Allowance connected persons rule, so 

employers who operate multiple payrolls will only be able to 

claim one allowance.

Employers in England are also able to get 'more out than they 

put in', through an additional government top-up of 10% to 

their levy contribution. 

When employers want to spend above their total levy amount, 

government will fund 90% of the cost for training and assessment 

within the funding bands.

The existing funding model will continue until the levy comes 

into effect May 2017. The levy will apply to employers across all 

sectors.

Paybill will be calculated based on total employee earnings subject 

to Class1 National Insurance Contributions. It will not include 

other payments such as benefits in kind. It will apply to total 

employee earnings in respect of all employees.

What will the levy mean in practice 

Employer of 250 employees, each with a gross salary of £20,000:

Paybill: 250 x £20,000 = £5,000,000

Levy sum: 0.5% x   = £25,000

Allowance: £25,000 - £15,000 = £10,000 annual levy 

How can we spend the levy funds?

The funding can only be used to fund training and assessment 

under approved apprenticeship schemes. It cannot be used on 

other costs associated with apprentices, including wages and 

remuneration, or training spend for the wider-team.

Through the Digital Apprenticeship Service (DAS), set  up by 

government, employers will have access to their funding in the 

form of digital vouchers to spend on training. 

Training can be designed to suit the needs of your organisation 

and the requirements of the individual in that role, in addition to 

specified training for that apprenticeship. Training providers must 

all be registered with the Skills Funding Agency (SFA).

Issues to consider:

• How much is the levy going 

to cost and have we 

budgeted for it?

• How do we ensure 

compliance with the new 

system?

• Which parts of the current 

spend on training are 

applicable to 

apprenticeships?

• Are there opportunities to 

mitigate additional cost 

presented by the levy?

• How is training in the 

organisation structured?

• How do we develop and 

align to our workforce 

development strategy

Grant Thornton update

P
age 30



‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms 

provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or 

more member firms, as the context requires. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 

(GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. 

GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 

of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or 

omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved | Draft

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Audit and Regulatory Committee

18th May 2017

Appendices Attached:
Appendix 1: Risk Management Strategy 

1.        Reason for the Report:

1.1 The purpose of the report is to present for approval the updated Risk 
Management Strategy, this includes consideration of the Council’s risk 
tolerance thresholds    

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the committee approve the revised Risk Management Strategy as 
detailed at Appendix 1  

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Council’s Risk Management Strategy has an inbuilt periodic review in 
order to ensure the Council’s approach reflects changing circumstances.   
 

3.2 The last review was approved in February 2016, which resulted in significant 
changes to the strategy following a voluntary external review by our insurers, 
Zurich Municipal. 

TITLE: Review of the Risk Management Strategy    

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 
Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICER: Vanessa Higgins - Information Business 
Partner 

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



2

3.3 This year’s review has been informed by a number of considerations, 
including:

 The financial challenges facing the Council over the course of its Medium 
Term Financial Plan and how this might affect the tolerance to financial 
risk;

 Consultation with senior managers and the corporate Risk Management 
Group to gather the perception of users of the risk framework as to the 
effectiveness of the assessment tools and thresholds currently used; and 

 ‘Horizon scanning’ for emerging risks within the public sector as identified 
by our insurance provider through their annual client forums.  

  
3.4 In light of the review, no fundamental change to the Council’s current risk 

tolerance thresholds is proposed for 2017. The minor changes proposed to 
the Council’s Risk Management Strategy are highlighted in blue within 
Appendix 1

 
4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 Risk management impacts on all service areas and therefore links to each of 
the Council’s Corporate Plan aims.   

5. Options

5.1 The committee can approve the revised strategy or suggest amendments

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity 
and Equality Policies

6.4 Financial Considerations
Effective Risk Management contributes to the Council’s financial objectives 

6.5 Legal
None

11.3

Page 34



3

6.6 Sustainability
None

6.7 Internal and External Consultation
Service Managers have been consulted on the current Risk Management 
Process through the Risk Management Group

6.8 Risk Assessment
Establishing the Council’s risk tolerance is key to delivering a successful 
Risk Management Strategy.   

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Background Papers Location Contact details

Medium Term Financial Plan.
Zurich’s Emerging Risks / Senior 
Manager’s Report 2016.

Available on request Vanessa Higgins 
OD & Transformation, 
Ext 4057 Leek

Page 35



4

7. Background and Introduction

7.1 The Council’s Risk Management Strategy was adopted in December 2010. It 
is a joint strategy that also covers the activities of the Council’s strategic 
alliance partner Staffordshire Moorlands District Council. 

7.2 Within the strategy there is a commitment to undertake annual reviews. 
Between 2010 and 2017 four reviews, including a fundamental revision of the 
Council’s approach, have been undertaken.    

8. 2017 Review

8.1 This year’s review has been relatively light touch, as it follows hard on the 
heels of a more fundamental review of the Council’s approach to Risk 
Management in 2015/16 in conjunction with the Council’s Insurers, Zurich 
Municipal.   

8.2 The review of our Risk Management Strategy in 2017 has taken account of:

 The financial challenges facing the Council over the course of its Medium 
Term Financial Plan and how this might affect our tolerance to financial 
risk. The move to a more commercially focused organisation brings with it 
the acceptance of calculated risks in return for new opportunities. The 
Council’s risk tolerance threshold needs to reflect the move in local 
government from process driven to outcome-based commercially focused 
organisations.
  

 The perception of users of the Risk Framework as to the effectiveness of 
the assessment tools and thresholds through consultation with the 
corporate Risk Management Group. This review found that the current 
strategy and risk tolerance thresholds were considered to be still 
appropriate given the ongoing financial climate within local government.  

 Horizon scanning for new and emerging risks within the public sector as 
identified by our insurers through their annual client forums. This helps 
inform both our strategy and the content of our strategic risk register. The  
‘Senior Managers Report 2016’ highlights risks around:

 Austerity and opportunity – cuts to local government funding have 
led to citizen-centred transformational change programmes being 
enacted. The report found that councils up and down the country 
are reinventing themselves; with a greater focus on growth and new 
income streams to aid future sustainability. Healthy local economies 
with thriving town centres means a steady income from business 
rates but are also susceptible to market influences. 

Page 36



5

 Collaboration and innovation – With the move from provider to 
commissioner, councils are reconsidering the delivery of statutory 
duties. Holistic approaches as seen in health and social care rely on 
enhanced partnership working to bring about outcome-led solutions. 
Shared services bring about their own risks, with governance 
arrangements being critical to their success. The report found that 
asset sharing is a common way of saving and improving too but 
could be a missed opportunity in some areas. Councils are trying to 
manage customer demand and expectations, whilst offering 
targeted support where it’s most needed. This in turn requires 
genuine engagement with local communities, with services 
designed around their needs. 

 Devolution – The report found that councils welcomed the growth 
opportunities afforded through devolution but felt that associated 
structural changes take up valuable resources and time. Cultural 
integration remains one of the biggest challenges in the creation of 
combined authorities. 

 Climate change - Localised flooding is a major issue for many 
councils with 40% of the UK population living only one metre above 
sea level. However, the local government response is seen as 
piecemeal with a call for large-scale investment at the national level. 
Climate change is the number one international risk.    

8.3 In light of the above review, no fundamental change to the Council’s current 
risk tolerance thresholds is proposed for 2017. The minor changes proposed 
to the Council’s Risk Management Strategy are highlighted in blue within 
Appendix 1 and pertain mainly to reporting frequencies with a change to 
biennial rather than annual strategy reports in line with actual practice.   

 

Page 37



6

 Appendix 1

High Peak Borough Council 

and

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council

(The Alliance)

JOINT 
RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

Page 38



7

RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
1. Introduction
1.1 High Peak Borough Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council (hereafter 

called the Alliance) have embedded risk management into their cultures, processes 
and structures to ensure that opportunities are maximised and risk minimised. This 
Strategy will enable the Alliance to develop risk management further through its 
effective use in management and decision making processes.

1.2 The Alliance recognises that there are risks involved in everything it does and that it 
has a duty to manage these risks efficiently and effectively. This duty is to staff, 
residents, service users, partners, contractors and funding agencies.

2. Statement of Commitment
2.1 The Leaders and portfolio holders of both Councils and the Alliance Management 

Team are committed to:
 Adopting best practice in the identification, evaluation and cost effective 

control of risks.
 Ensuring wherever possible that risks are either reduced to a level within the 

Alliance’s risk tolerance or eliminated.  
 Maximising opportunities to achieve the Alliance’s objectives and deliver core 

service provisions. 

2.2 It is acknowledged that some risks will always exist and will never be eliminated.

2.3 All employees must understand the nature of the risk and accept responsibility for 
risks associated with their area of work. In doing this they will receive the necessary 
support, assistance and commitment from senior management and members.

2.4 The Alliance’s risk management objectives are an inherent part of good management 
and governance practices. The objectives need the full support of members and 
active participation of directors and service managers.

2.5 This strategy demonstrates how the Alliance is discharging its responsibility to 
manage risks and maximise opportunities using a structured and focused approach 
to risk management.

3. Definitions:
3.1 Enterprise Risk Management

A framework for risk management which involves; identifying events or 
circumstances relevant to the Alliance’s objectives (risks and opportunities); 
assessing them in terms of likelihood and magnitude of impact; determining a 
response strategy; and monitoring progress. By identifying and proactively 
addressing risks and opportunities, the Alliance will create value for its stakeholders, 
including employees, customers, regulators, and society overall.

3.2 Governance
‘An interrelated system that brings together an underlying set of legislative 
requirements, governance principles and management processes.’ (Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government by CIPFA – the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance Accountants - and SOLACE – the Society of Local Council Chief 
Executives). Good governance leads to good: management, performance, 

Page 39



8

stewardship, public engagement and, ultimately, good outcomes for citizens and 
service users and other stakeholders.

3.3 Risk
The effect of an uncertainty (positive or negative) on objectives. Risks should not be 
confused with:
 ‘Consequences’ (an outcome of an event);
 ‘Issues’ (something present that can be adequately controlled through routine 

operational activity); and
 ‘Incidents’ (event in which a loss occurred or could have occurred regardless 

of severity). 

3.4 Risk Management
The process, by which risks are identified, evaluated and controlled. Good risk 
management increases the likelihood of success and reduces uncertainty in 
achieving objectives. 

3.5 Risk Assessment
This is the overall process of risk identification, analysis, and evaluation.

3.6 Risk Tolerance 
The Financial Reporting Council in its updated (June 2010) Corporate Governance 
Code states:  “The board is responsible for determining the nature and extent of the 
significant risks it is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives.”  The 
thresholds for the Alliance’s tolerance to risk are outlined within the matrix at 
Appendix A. 

3.7 Once established, the risk tolerance can be used as an input in the decision making 
process.  If the Alliance is risk averse then possible beneficial opportunities may be 
passed over as the risk is too great. Whereas an organisation with a lower aversion 
to risk may well accept the opportunity but with the knowledge that there is a more 
significant risk level.

  
3.8 The risk tolerance thresholds should be reviewed regularly by the Risk Management   

Group and agreed by the Audit Committee biennially. By doing this the Council will 
be determining the nature and extent of the significant risks that it is willing to take in 
achieving its strategic objectives. The review by the Audit Committee will ensure 
robust challenge and endorsement. Matters to consider will include:

 To what extent does the Alliance want to be a risk taker
 Can the Alliance afford to take risks
 What level of risk is tolerable 
 Should there be a consistent attitude to risk across services

4 Objectives and Benefits of Risk Management 
4.1 The Alliance is committed to establishing and maintaining a systematic approach to 

risk management through Enterprise Risk Management. Risk Management is one of 
the foundation stones on which every decision taken at corporate and operational 
level is made and assists in achieving objectives.

4.2 The objective of risk management is to reduce the frequency of risk events occurring 
(wherever this is possible) and minimise the severity of their consequences if they do 

Page 40



9

occur. Even when the likelihood of an event occurring (such as a severe storm) 
cannot be controlled, steps can be taken to minimise the consequences i.e. by 
having effective and robust Emergency and Business Continuity Plans in place.

4.3 Risk management provides a framework within which the Alliance can be forward 
looking and innovative and minimise potential damage or loss to the Alliance, its 
staff, residents, service users, partners, contractors and funding agencies.  

4.4 Risk is not restricted to potential threats but can be connected with opportunities. 
Good risk management can facilitate proactive, rather than merely defensive, 
responses. Measures to manage adverse risks are likely to help with managing 
opportunities.

4.5 The key objectives of this risk management strategy are to:-
 Achieve the objectives of the Risk Management Strategy through the use of 

the risk management process using Enterprise Risk Management.

 Add value by improving the ability of the Alliance to: manage uncertainty; 
anticipate change; protect its reputation; and deliver its objectives.

 Ensure that the framework for identifying, evaluating, controlling, reviewing, 
reporting and communicating operational and strategic risks across the 
Alliance is implemented, understood and embraced by all staff and members.

 Assist in good governance arrangements that comply with health and safety, 
insurance and legal requirements.

 Protect the Alliance’s assets (tangible and intangible) and make services more 
resilient to critical disruption. 

4.6 These objectives will be achieved by:
 Clearly defining the roles, responsibilities and reporting lines within the 

Alliance for risk management. 

 Reinforcing risk management as part of all decision-making processes and in 
all aspects of activity including service delivery.

 
 Maintaining documented procedures for the control of risk and provision of 

suitable information, training and guidance. 

 Having in place contingency plans to secure business continuity where there 
is a potential for an event to have a major impact upon the Alliance’s ability to 
function. 

 
4.7 Effective risk management will strengthen the ability of the Alliance to achieve its 

aims, objectives and enhance the value of services through the effective 
management of risks providing the following benefits (which are not necessarily 
exclusively strategic or operational):

Strategic:
 Increased likelihood of realising corporate ambitions.

Page 41



10

 Contribution to improved decision-making to achieve the desired outcomes by 
assisting members and officers to make informed decisions about the 
appropriateness of adopting policy, project management, procurement or 
service delivery options.

 Wider demonstration of openness and accountability to various inspectorate 
bodies and stakeholders.

 Improved image and reputation.
 Effective management of partnership and project risks.
 More informed assessments of business opportunities;
 Members have a clear understanding of their responsibilities:

o Improved member challenge / scrutiny
o Members and management assured on the adequacy of arrangements 

for the conduct of business and the use of resources.

Operational: 
 Services have the knowledge and tools to identify the strategic and 

operational risks to their business and have in place arrangements to mitigate 
and manage these risks.

 Improved use of finances and other resources as risks are managed and 
exposure to risk is reduced.

 Greater risk awareness and an improved control environment. 
 Increased willingness and confidence to undertake innovative projects and be 

less risk averse whilst managing risks efficiently and effectively.
 Proactive approaches to responding to emerging risks and focus on the risks 

that will inform future strategies enabling more effective planning for the future.
 Demonstrable achievement of and adherence to statutory (including health 

and safety) and legal standards.

5 Approach
5.1 The approach taken to risk management by the Alliance follows the principles of 

enterprise risk management.  This approach enables the Alliance to consider the 
potential impact of all types of risk on all the activities of the Alliance in a structured 
manner allowing the Alliance to benefit from effective risk management.  These 
benefits are continuity of service, being able to plan for eventualities and not having 
“nasty” surprises.

5.2 To assist with this approach to risk management and to ensure consistency across 
the Alliance, a guidance document on the risk management process has been 
prepared.  The process will be reviewed annually by the Information Business 
Partner.

5.3 In order to support risk minimisation initiatives across the Alliance, each Council has 
set aside Risk Reduction Funding against which Services can bid for one-off funding. 
The Corporate Risk Management Group receives all such bids and decides on the 
merit of each submission. 

5.4 By effectively managing risks and opportunities, which is part of good governance, 
the Alliance will be in a stronger position to: deliver its objectives, provide improved 
services to the public, work better with partners and achieve best value. Risk 
management will inform the Alliance’s business processes, including:

Page 42



11

 Strategic planning 
 Financial planning 
 Service planning 
 Policy making and review 
 Performance management 
 Project management 
 Partnership working 
 Contractors / suppliers
 Internal Control and Internal Audit.
 Business Continuity and Emergency planning.

5.5 For those with responsibility for achieving objectives, responsibility also lies for 
identifying and assessing risks and opportunities; developing and implementing 
controls and warning mechanisms; and reviewing and reporting on progress. The 
identified risks and relevant control measures will be managed through the Alliance’s 
Risk Registers.

5.6 Some objectives could be reliant upon external organisations that the Alliance works 
with, e.g. partners and contractors. This partnership working could affect the 
achievement of an objective and therefore the risk management process has been 
incorporated into the way the Alliance works within these partnerships through the 
Partnership Protocol.

6 Risk Management Process
6.1 Consideration of risk should not be a stand-alone process and should reflect 

uncertainties in the planning and delivery processes which could seriously affect 
outcomes, for example: resources, funding strategies, partnerships, or suppliers.

6.2 The Alliance will adopt the following risk management  process:
The risk management cycle:

6.3 The risk management process is outlined below:
Step Title Description
1 Risk 

Identification
Identify risks by reference to corporate, service or project 
objectives. This will involve identifying the perceived 
vulnerability or trigger and the potential consequences. 

2 Risk Analysis 
/ Evaluation

Areas of potential risk need to be systematically and accurately 
assessed. The process requires an assessment of the:

 Probability of a risk event occurring.
 Potential severity of the consequences should such an 

event occur.

Risk 
Identification

Monitoring 
and Review

Risk Analysis 
/ Evaluation

Risk Control

Page 43



12

Step Title Description
 Possible resource and other implications.
 Priority of the risk for action in relation to the Alliance’s 

risk tolerance.

Once threats and opportunities have been identified their 
potential “inherent risk” is evaluated i.e. with no mitigation in 
place.  It is then re-evaluated taking into account the effect of 
mitigations that are in place and active.  The result is the 
determination of the “residual risk.”  

3 Risk Control Prioritisation for attention is according to the existing control 
environment, risk tolerance, residual risk assessment, and the 
availability of resources.

Risk cannot be eliminated completely. Risk management is the 
process of taking action to minimise the likelihood of the risk 
event occurring and/or reducing the severity of the 
consequences should it occur or maximising the opportunities.

Determine the course of action necessary to reduce the risk 
further preferably to within the Alliance’s risk tolerance. Such 
action will be: treatment, transfer, tolerate or terminate.  All 
possible actions need to be considered / evaluated.  

Assign clear responsibility for managing the risk to an 
appropriate “risk owner” who is able to influence and take 
necessary actions.

Action plans to address risks should be SMART (Specific, 
Measurable, Achievable, Relevant &Timely).

Contingency arrangements need to be developed that are 
appropriate to the threat identified.

The required actions will be entered into the risk register and 
monitored.

4 Risk 
Monitoring & 
Review

There must be monitoring and review of:
 The implementation of the agreed control action
 The effectiveness of the action in controlling the risk.
 How the risk evolves / changes in response to changes 

in the operating environment, changing business 
conditions, operational changes etc. 

 Where an incident occurs the post-incident reviews must 
be undertaken into the causes/impact and identify 
lessons learnt.

As part of the review the risks will be re-evaluated and the 
cycle will continue as demonstrated in the diagram above.

7 Risk types

7.1 There are two levels of risk:

Page 44



13

Risk type
Title

Level of risk Impact Managed by

Strategic 1. Matters affecting the 
delivery of Corporate 
Plans. 

2. Matters affecting the 
Alliance

3. Matters affecting more 
than one service 

Has potential to affect 
the objectives / goals of 
the Alliance

Alliance 
Management 
Team

Operational Affecting a service area Has potential to affect 
service delivery

Service 
Manager/ 
Head of 
Service

8 Roles and Responsibilities
8.1 Responsibility for risk management sits across the Alliance and includes members, 

senior officers and to some extent all employees. Clear identification of roles and 
responsibilities will ensure the successful adoption of risk management and 
demonstrate that it is embedded in the culture of the Alliance. Roles and 
responsibilities are as shown below and can be split into three lines of assurance:

First Level – Management
The Assurance at this level comes mainly from those charged with delivering specific 
corporate objectives, projects or operational activities. 
Group  / 
 Individual

Role

Cabinet / 
Executive  

 Oversee the effective management of risk throughout their 
Council

Chief 
Executive

 Ultimate responsibility for risk management across the Alliance
 To ensure that risk management practices across the Alliance 

reflect best practice 
 To ensure that an effective policy strategy is in place
 To ensure that risk management issues are fully considered in 

the decision making process
 Ensure that risk management is fully embedded across the 

Alliance
Directors  Ensure that the risk management process is promoted, 

developed, managed and implemented effectively in their service 
areas

 Make decisions with their service managers as to which service 
risks may warrant inclusion on the strategic risk register

 Identify and manage corporate risks facing the Alliance
 Take ownership of strategic risks in their directorate and include 

them in the Strategic Risk Register
 Disseminating relevant information to service managers and 

employees
Member 
Champion

 To promote the concept and practice of risk management

Heads of 
Service / 
Service 

 To act as risk management champion within their service and 
ensure their service actively and positively embraces the risk 
management process

Page 45



14

Managers  Ensure that risk management is an integral part of service 
planning 

 Take ownership of service risks in their service
 Recommend any necessary training for employees on risk 

management
 Share relevant information with colleagues in other service areas.
 Support the work of the risk management group
 Liaising with external agencies to identify and manage risk
 Maintain and update the service operational risk register
 Have in place procedures for new, emerging and escalating risks
 Monitor (and share with director and risk officer) situations where:

o Risks that are rising in their level of severity
o Circumstances where managers have been unable to 

implement the agreed mitigating actions
o Risk that potentially have an impact on other services

Second Level – Corporate Groups / Specialist Officers
Assurance at this level comes from other management areas that are not directly 
responsible for service delivery but which carry out reviews to ensure risks are being 
managed. Responsibilities include ensuring compliance.  
Section 151 
Officer

 Ensure that the risk management processes are robust through 
regular reporting and the work of Internal Audit

 Overall control of the risk management function
 To promote the implementation of the Alliance’s Risk 

Management Strategy
Risk 
Management 
Group

 Monitor and review the risk management strategy and policy
 Challenge and monitor the implementation of the risk 

management mitigation plans within Operational Risk Registers
 Promote and share good risk management practice throughout 

the Alliance
 Support the development of the risk management process, share 

experience on risk, and aid / advice in the review of risk 
management issues

 Identify areas of overlapping risk
 To identify trends and priorities

Information 
Business 
Partner

 To develop and maintain a risk management process reflecting 
best practice.

 Biennially review the risk management strategy and process 
ensuring it remains robust

 Ensure that risks are reviewed and reported to management
 Collate and manage the risk registers
 Prepare annual and periodic risk management reports for the 

Audit Committee
 Identify and communicate risk management issues to services, 

and assist in undertaking risk management activity through 
guidance, training or direct support

 Promote the risk management process throughout the Alliance 
with both members and officers, ensuring the process is 
embedded, effective and reflects best practice

 To consult with service managers concerning risk issues
 To act as lead support officer for the corporate risk management 

Page 46



15

group
Third Level – Independent / External 
Assurance at this last level comes from independent and objective sources such as 
Committees and external agencies. Responsibilities here include challenge. 
Audit 
Committee

 Pro-actively challenge senior management and relevant officers 
on the identified risks.

 Provide independent assurance of the effectiveness of the risk 
management framework and associated control environment.

 To approve and agree changes to the risk management Policy, 
Strategy and risk tolerance.

 Monitoring the Council’s risk management arrangements.
 Monitor the operational and strategic risk registers.
 Review progress being made with regard to implementation of 

actions being taken to address risk management issues
 Ensuring that the statement on internal control correctly reflects 

the risk environment.
All Members  To promote good risk management processes.

 To ensure that risks have been robustly assessed in reports 
presented to members.

All officers  Be aware of the Alliance’s risk management strategy.
 Manage risk effectively in their jobs, liaising with their line 

manager to assess areas of risk in their job. 
Internal Audit  To provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control and 

risk management arrangements across the Alliance
External 
Audit

 To provide an external opinion on the management of significant 
risks

9 Embedding risk management into the culture of the Alliance
9.1 The Alliance has a well established risk management culture and this strategy seeks 

to build on that. The aim is to ensure that risk management plays an integral part in 
decision making and the day to day business of the Alliance in a structured manner.

9.2 Our principles are to:
 Engage all members, staff and partners, in effective risk management 

processes.
 Encourage an open culture where no-one will be criticised or blamed for 

raising genuine issues.
 Use risk management to learn how to improve activities and behaviours and 

so improve services and thereby better serve customers.
 Encourage all members and senior managers to lead by example in 

demonstrating the culture of learning rather than blame. 
 Ensure that significant decisions are only made after a proper assessment of 

the risks has been properly considered. 
 Minimise negative risks and maximise opportunities.

10 Links to Governance issues
10.1 Corporate Governance

Risk management is an essential part of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework on 
Corporate Governance that has been adopted by all Local Authorities. The 
Framework requires the Alliance to establish and maintain a systematic strategy, 
framework and process for managing risk.

Page 47



16

10.2 Internal Control
Good internal control ensures that the processes and procedures operate in an 
orderly and efficient manner, statutory and management requirements are complied 
with, assets are safeguarded and records are complete and accurate.   Poor internal 
control will increase the risks.

10.3 Performance Monitoring
Performance monitoring of risk management activity will ensure that the treatment of 
risk remains effective and the benefits of implementing risk control measures 
outweigh the costs of doing so. Performance monitoring is a continual review not only 
of the whole process, but also of individual risks or projects and of the benefits 
gained from implementing risk control measures. The section regarding the 
communications process includes reporting through a risk dashboard to the 
Alliance’s management team, which aids the achievement of performance 
monitoring.

10.4 Project Management
The application of robust risk management in delivering major and complex projects 
will assist in the successful delivery of projects. The corporate approach to risk 
management and assessment will be applied to project risks as part of the revised 
project management methodology.  

10.5 Data Quality
The Alliance needs to ensure that the data used for performance monitoring and to 
inform decision making is accurate, reliable, timely and fit for purpose. If the 
information is misleading, decision making may be flawed, resources may be wasted, 
poor services may not be improved and policy may be ill-founded. This could 
represent significant risks to the Alliance.  The Alliance has a Data Quality Policy 
which sets out the measures in place to ensure that data is fit for purpose. 

10.6 Anti-Fraud and Corruption
The Alliance has anti-fraud and corruption frameworks in place, which will direct the 
Alliance towards ensuring a professional and ethical approach to combating fraud.  
Good risk management practices will assist in enhancing the level of internal control 
thereby assisting in reducing the opportunities for fraud and corruption.

10.7 Business Continuity
The business continuity process is essentially risk management applied to the whole 
Alliance and its ability to continue with its service provision in the event of a 
catastrophic event. The Alliance must ensure risk management processes are 
applied throughout the business continuity lifecycle.

10.8 Emergency Planning
The Emergency Plans provide a framework that will enable the Councils to provide a 
quick and effective response to mitigate the effects of any emergency on the public 
and/or the environment in the Borough / District.

10.9 Health and Safety
The Alliance has demonstrated a commitment to Health and Safety with the 
development of policies and guidance specifically addressing the management of 
risk.

Page 48



17

11 Reporting
11.1 The structure for reporting risks effectively is to report on an exception basis 

prioritising the most significant risks (those with a risk rating of ‘high’ or above, which 
are beyond the Alliance’s current risk tolerance).

11.2 The reporting timetable will be:
Timeframe Description: Report to:

Quarterly Review of the Strategic and Operational Risk 
Registers.   

Corporate Risk 
Management Group

Biennially Review of the risk management strategy to 
identify and agree major changes, including a 
review of risk tolerance. 

Audit Committee and 
Alliance Management 
Team

Biannually Strategic / Operational Risk Register reports 

Reporting must be on an exception basis 
ensuring it is meaningful and prioritises the 
significant issues.

Alliance Management 
Team and Audit 
Committee

12 Conclusion
12.1 By embracing risk management the Alliance will make the most of the opportunities 

which it faces, whilst operating within a risk-aware environment.  By effectively 
managing risks and opportunities, which is all part of good governance, the Alliance 
will be in a stronger position to deliver its objectives and meet the requirements of the 
financial constraints in the public sector, work better as a partner with other 
organisations and achieve best value.

Page 49



1

Risk Tolerance Thresholds Appendix A

Impact

1 2 3 4 5

5 5 10 15 20 25

4 4 8 12 16 20

3 3 6 9 12 15

2 2 4 6 8 10

Li
ke

lih
oo

d
1 1 2 3 4 5

Green – Low Amber – Medium Red – High Purple – Critical

Page 50



2

Definitions for scoring matrix
Impact Thresholds and Description Likelihood Description
1 – Insignificant Financial Impact = <£10k

Reputational Impact = None
Physical Injury = None
Environmental Damage = 
Insignificant
Service Disruption = No loss of 
service to customer

1 – Rare May occur only in 
exceptional 
circumstances (e.g. 
once in a decade)

2 – Minor Financial Impact = £10k - £50k
Reputational Impact = Minimal 
coverage in local press
Physical Injury = Minor (first aid)
Environmental Damage = Minor local
Service Disruption = Internal 
disruption only

2 – Unlikely Unlikely to occur 
but could at some 
time (e.g. once in 3 
years) 

3 – Moderate Financial Impact = £50k+ - £100k
Reputational Impact = Extensive 
coverage in local media
Physical Injury = Violence / threat of 
serious injury requiring medical 
treatment
Environmental Damage = Moderate 
local
Service Disruption = Disruption of 
less than 7 days for Priority 3 and 4 
functions*

3 – Possible Fairly likely to occur 
at some time or 
under certain 
circumstances (e.g. 
once in 2 years)

4 – Major Financial Impact = £100k+
Reputational Impact = Coverage in 
national media
Physical Injury = Extensive multiple 
injuries
Environmental Damage = major local
Service Disruption = Priority 2 
function disrupted for more than 3 
days

4 – Likely Will probably occur 
at some time or in 
most circumstances 
(e.g. annually) 

5 – 
Catastrophic

Financial Impact = £1m+
Reputational Impact = Extensive 
national press / media (lead item)
Physical Injury = Major and beyond
Environmental Damage = major 
national or beyond
Service Disruption = Priority 1 
function disrupted for more than 24 
hours

5 – Almost 
Certain

Is expected to 
occur in most 
circumstances (e.g. 
monthly)

*The Priority functions are identified in the Council’s Business Continuity Plan. 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



9. 1

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Audit and Regulatory Committee

18th May 2017

Appendices attached: 
Appendix A: Strategic Risks (by exception)
Appendix B: Operational Risks (by exception)

1.        Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s risk 
management arrangements in accordance with generally accepted good 
practice.  

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the committee note the Council’s current risk position and the mitigation 
plans summarised within Appendix A (strategic risks) and Appendix B 
(operational risks).

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Council’s Strategic, Operational and Project Risk Registers are reviewed 
by the Audit and Regulatory Committee on an exception basis. This report is 
based upon the Council’s position as at March 2017.   

3.2 The latest analysis of the Strategic Risk Register reveals that the Council has 
identified and assessed 13 strategic risks, of which 31% are rated as 'high' and 
therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold. The four ‘High’ rated 
risks are listed in full at Appendix A.   

3.3 The Operational Risk Registers reveal that the Council has identified and 

TITLE: Risk Management Update (overview of 
strategic, operational and project risks)   

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 
Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICER: Vanessa Higgins - Information Business 
Partner

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-specific

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



9. 2

assessed 32 operational risks in total, of which 19% are rated as ‘high’ and 
therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance thresholds. The six risks falling 
within the ‘high’ category are listed in full at Appendix B.

3.4 The new project risk registers (four to date) have risk profiles that are all within 
the Council’s tolerance thresholds, with no ‘high’ rated risks:

 0% Critical 
 0% High  
 25% Medium – 4 risks
 75% Low – 12 risks

4. Evaluation of Options

4.1 There are no options to consider

5. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

5.1 Risk Management impacts on all service areas and therefore links to each of 
the Council’s Corporate Plan aims.   

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies

6.4 Financial Considerations
Effective Risk Management contributes to financial objectives 

6.5 Legal
None

6.6 Sustainability
None

6.7 Internal and External Consultation
None

6.8 Risk Assessment
The Council’s Risk Registers are a critical element in the Council’s 
Risk Management Framework.  

Page 54



9. 3

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Background Papers Location Contact details

Risk Registers – March 2017 Buxton Town Hall Information Business Partner
Vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk 
Tel Ext 4057

Page 55

mailto:Vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk


9. 4

7. Background and Introduction

7.1 The Council ensures that it undertakes a deliberate and systematic 
identification of the key risks that might prevent, degrade, delay or enhance 
the achievement its objectives and priorities. The Council's Risk Management 
Strategy sets out the process for undertaking this on an ongoing basis. 

7.2 In addition to the identification of risks, managers also have to quantify them in 
terms of likelihood and potential impact. The risks are then recorded in the 
Council's risk registers. These have three aspects – strategic, operational and 
project risks. 

7.3 Under the Risk Management Strategy, the Council’s ‘risk tolerance’ threshold 
is set along the border between ‘medium’ and ‘high’ rated residual risks. The 
strategy stipulates that mitigating actions should be identified for all risks that 
exceed this threshold.

7.4 The Council’s Strategic, Operational and Project Risk Registers are reviewed 
on a quarterly basis and reported into the Corporate Risk Management Group 
and the Audit and Regulatory Committee on an exception basis. The 
appendices provide details of all risks that have been rated as ‘high’ or above, 
and therefore beyond the Council’s risk tolerance threshold.  

8. Strategic Risks

8.1 The March 2017 analysis of the Strategic Risk Register reveals that the 
Council has identified and assessed 13 strategic risks, of which 31% are rated 
as 'high' and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold. There are 
also two opportunity risks within the register – New Homes Bonus and 
Business Rates Retention -  from which the Council is aiming to maximise the 
financial opportunities. 

8.2 The Council’s risk profile is displayed below and shows an increase of one 
additional ‘medium’ rated risk, which addresses the possible legal and 
financial impacts of world events.   

Residual Risk Rating High Peak
Risks

Alliance
Risks

Total
Risks

Critical - - -
High 1 3 4
Medium 3 4 7
Low 1 1 2

Total Risks 13
    

Page 56



9. 5

8.3 The four high rated risks are mapped on the risk matrix above. Financial and 
regeneration project type risks still make up the vast majority of risks within the 
Strategic Risk Register.    

Impact
1 2 3 4 5

5
4

1 
HRA Business 
Plan (financial 

/ regulatory 
reform)

3

1

Medium Term 
Financial Plan 

1

Investment 
into assets 

and long term 
planning

2

1  
Safeguarding 

duty 
(legal 

obligations)

Li
ke

lih
oo

d
1

Page 57



9. 6

9. Operational Risks 

9.1 The March 2017 analysis of the Operational Risk Registers reveals that the 
Council has identified and assessed 32 operational risks in total, of which 19% 
are rated as ‘high’ and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance thresholds. 
The previously ‘high’ rated risk around ICT infrastructure and the server room 
has been downgraded to ‘medium’ following successful progression of this 
important project.     

9.2 The six risks falling within the ‘high’ category are listed in full at Appendix B. A 
full breakdown of the Council’s operational risk profile is given below:

Residual Risk 
Rating

High Peak Risks Alliance
Risks

Total Risks

Critical - - -
High 1 5 6
Medium 1 8 9
Low 1 16 17

Total Risks 32
   

9.3 The greatest number of operational risks sits within the Operational Services 
area, which encompasses waste and recycling; street scene, leisure, 
horticulture and the DLO. 

9.4 An analysis of the alignment of risk to our corporate objectives shows that 
most operational risks relate to the use of resources in order to achieve value 
for money.  

10. Project Risks

10.1 Projects committed through the Corporate Plan will be included in the strategic 
risk register and other start and finish projects are being picked up through the 

Page 58



9. 7

project risk registers. The alliance is still in the early days of implementation of 
a revised project management approach and to date has risk assessments for 
the following projects:

 Digital Portal
 Derbyshire Fraud Initiative
 Committee Management System
 Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme

10.2 The project risks identified so far are all below the Council’s tolerance 
thresholds with no ‘high’ rated risks:

 0% Critical 
 0% High  
 25% Medium – 4 risks
 75% Low – 12 risks

Page 59



9. 8

Strategic Risks (by exception) Appendix A
AMT 
Owner 

Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability)

Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans Date

Andrew 
Stokes

SR2 Delivery of MTFP 
through the 
Efficiency and 
Rationalisation 
Strategy

Effective programme and project 
management methodology for 
the transformation programme. 
Performance Management 
Framework monitors the 
achievement of Council Aims.

4 3 1. Monthly Transformation Board 
meetings to oversee key projects 
linked to the efficiency and 
rationalisation strategy e.g. housing 
delivery programmes to facilitate 
growth and the income generation 
project. 2. Accelerated procurement 
projects around waste, leisure and 
facilities management.   

1. Ongoing
2. As per project 

milestones

Mark 
Trillo

SR12 Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults – 
fulfilling our legal 
duty

1. Revised Joint Policy in place 
for Safeguarding Children and 
Vulnerable Adults. 2. All staff 
have been briefed on the 
safeguarding policy and 
identified staff have received 
level 1 training in safeguarding 
children. 3. Training of adult 
safeguarding has been provided 
to key staff members. 

5 2 There is an ongoing rolling 
programme of actions in place. 

Ongoing

Andrew 
Stokes

SR13 HRA Business 
Plan (financial and 
regulatory reform)

1. Engaged Sector to advise on 
the HRA Business Plan 2. 
Increased levels of assurance 
on Capital investment 
programme 3. Strategic review 
of housing management function 
completed. 4. In depth review of 
Capital Programme 5. Signed up 
to voluntary code of practice. 6.  
Full self assessment against the 
voluntary code of practice via 
the newly established working 
group. 7. Action Plan from 
Position Statement with re-
established priorities for the 

4 4 1. Carry out stock condition surveys 
and assess financial performance 
of housing category types. 2. HRA 
review underway – focusing on all 
areas of the HRA with assigned 
stream leads over a 12 months 
period.  Reporting mechanism in 
place to a Member/Officer working 
group. 

1. Dec 2017 to 
complete 2. 
Underway 

P
age 60



9. 9

AMT 
Owner 

Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability)

Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans Date

HRA. 8. Short term deficit 
eliminated. 9. HRA Business 
Plan and Financial Improvement 
Plan agreed. 

Andrew 
Stokes

SR17 Investment into 
council assets and 
long term planning

The completion of a full building 
condition survey of all public 
buildings. High level report 
issued to Corporate Select in 
July 16. Working Group being 
established to assist with the 
formulation of a new strategic 
asset management plan. 

5 3 Complete essential H&S and 
structural works to properties whilst 
the strategic review is ongoing. A 
12 month process to undertake the 
analysis and decisions required for 
the implementation of a new 
strategy. The health and safety 
works are on-going and the asset 
management plan is currently being 
finalised.

Sept 2017

P
age 61



9. 10

Operational Risks (by exception) Appendix B
Service Ref Risk Description 

(vulnerability)
Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans Date

Assets AS1 Accuracy of stock 
condition data across 
public buildings and 
housing stock

Public buildings surveys 
completed and findings 
presented July 2016. 

4 4 1. Housing stock condition 
survey approval in July 2016. 
2. Working group to be 
established to review findings 
over the next 12 months. 
MTFP approved Feb 2017. 
Housing Stock Condition 
survey to commence in May 
2017

1. Stock Condition 
(Housing) to be 
completed December 
2017.

Democratic 
and 
Community

DC1 Breach of equality 
regulations

1. Equality impact 
assessments undertaken                           
2.Equalities policy in place                                              
3. Equality impact has been 
written into the new project 
methodology currently being 
introduced.

4 3 1. Training will be undertaken 
with all staff as part of the 
training passport initiative 
and also with Members.                                
2. Equality champions have 
been assigned and will 
undertake more detailed 
training.                     

1. Mar 2017
2. Mar 2017                                                                                                                            

FP1 Risk to income 
stream/budgetary 
overspend

1. Budget monitoring                                                            
2. Efficiency programme                    
3. Consider latest intelligence 
for budget reviews                        
4.Contingency reserve in place 

4 3 1. Ensure there is a provision 
in the General Fund                             
2. Monitor budget position 
and target specific areas                              
3. Resourcing of efficiency 
and transformation process

Ongoing continual 
process

Finance and 
Procurement

FP2 Pension Liability risk 
to budget

1. Monitoring of pension 
liability. 2. Careful 
consideration of pension cost 
implications when awarding 
contracts (externalisation of 
services). 3. Base budgets on 
latest intelligence. 4. Manage 
pressure through the Financial 
Planning process. 5. Close 
liaison with pensions authority                                                                
6. Careful workforce planning 

4 3 1. Flag up potential long term 
risks and manage carefully 
as part of the medium term 
financial planning process.                                                            
2. The LGPS triennial 
valuation outcomes have 
been incorporated into the 
updated MTFP in Feb 2017.  
The next review will take 
place in 3 years.

1. Ongoing                                                                                                                                                                                      
2. Ongoing

P
age 62



9. 11

Service Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability)

Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans Date

FP3 Treasury 
Management 
failure(General)

1. Professional training of staff                           
2. Professional advice and 
support 3. Careful control of 
lending list including 
investment limits on institutions 
through formally adopted 
Treasury Management 
strategy. 4. Full compliance 
with the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and 
Accountancy's (CIPFA) Code 
of Practice on Treasury 
Management

5 2 1. Carry out regular credit 
checks and react to latest 
developments in treasury 
management risk

Ongoing continual 
process

Visitor V2 Implications of the 
closure of the 
Octagon

Communications Strategy 
around the Octagon closure. 
Project Board with relevant 
sub-groups.

4 5 Continued hire of marquee to 
act as substitute venue to 
hold events. Octagon work 
scheduled for Dec 2017 
completion. 

Dec 2017

P
age 63



9. 12

Appendix C: OPPORTUNITY RISKS
AMT Owner Ref Opportunity Controls Impact Likelihood Fruition Plans Date

OP1 New Homes Bonus 1. MTFP reviewed and 
refreshed three times a 
year including financial 
modelling. 2. Affordable 
Homes Programme. 3. 
Empty Homes work.

4 3 1. Maximise New Homes Bonus 
through targeted activity. 2. 
Commissioned an Empty Homes 
review (Capacity Grid). 3. Focus on 
growth agenda through Local Plan 
delivery.  

1. On-
going 2. 
Paused. 3. 
TBD

Exec Director - 
Transformation

OP2 Business Rates 
retention scheme

1. MTFP reviewed and 
refreshed three times a 
year. 2. Financial 
modelling on assumed 
reductions. 3. Pooling 
arrangements in relation 
to business rates. 4. 
Budget Strategy and 
forecasting. 5. NNDR 
revaluation completed. 

4 3 1. Pooling arrangements 2. Central 
Govt. will make good shortfall. 3. 
Assess impact of 100% BRR

On-going

P
age 64



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to Audit & Regulatory Committee

18th May 2017

Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 High Peak BC / Staffordshire Moorlands 
DC Internal Audit - Audit Plan 2017/18

1.        Reason for the Report:

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to 
“undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its 
risk management, control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. In 
accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Audit 
Manager should establish a risk based audit plan to determine the 
priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the Council’s 
goals. The audit plan must be based on a documented risk assessment 
undertaken at least annually.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That Councillors approve the Council’s annual Internal Audit Plan for 
2017/18.

TITLE: Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2017/18

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive
Councillor – Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICER: John Leak – Internal Audit Manager

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards state that the Audit Plan 
must be based on a documented risk assessment undertaken at least 
annually and it needs to be flexible in response to changes in the 
Council’s business, risks, operations, programs, systems and controls. 
Furthermore, the Standard states that the Audit Manager must 
communicate the internal audit activity’s plans and resource 
requirements to senior management and the Audit Committee for 
review and approval. The Audit Manager must also communicate the 
impact of resource limitations. This report seeks to address these 
requirements.

3.2 The annual audit plan for 2017/18 has been created and is attached as 
Appendix 1. This involved a review of the risk scores in accordance 
with the Audit Service’s established risk assessment methodology to 
ensure that the most recent changes affecting risk are taken into 
account. The Internal Audit Plan is a joint Alliance plan designed to 
make the best use of Alliance resources and to reflect the nature of 
Council services.

3.3 Should any amendments to the audit plan be necessary during the 
year, these will be reported to Councillors at future Audit & Regulatory 
Committee meetings.

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the 
Annual Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective 
use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money. 

5. Options and Analysis

5.1 Approve the 2017/18 Audit Plan (Recommended). The Council will have 
an achievable risk based internal audit plan which is designed to 
provide assurance that the control environment is effective in achieving 
the Council’s objectives and is in accordance with Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, and therefore the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015.

5.2 Do not approve the 2017/18 Audit Plan (Not Recommended). The 
Council will not be complying with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015 requirement to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate 
the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards 
or guidance”.

Page 66



6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

No implications.

6.2 Workforce

No implications.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations

No implications.

6.5 Legal

No implications.

6.6 Sustainability

No implications.

6.7 Internal and External Consultation

No implications.

6.8 Risk Assessment

The annual audit plan has been prepared in accordance with the 
Internal Audit Service’s established risk assessment methodology.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

None N/A John Leak
Audit Services Manager
Tel: (01538) 395695
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 67

mailto:john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
mailto:john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


7. Background and Detail

7.1 The audit plan must be based on a documented risk assessment 
undertaken at least annually, in accordance with the requirements of 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. However the audit plan 
needs to be flexible to be able to reflect the changing risks and priorities 
of the Council so the entire scope of audits will receive ongoing 
consideration and attention to ensure that appropriate audit coverage is 
achieved.

7.2 The Audit Plan has been developed using a comprehensive risk 
assessment framework which is designed to assess all areas of the 
Council’s services and thereby examine and evaluate the whole system 
of internal controls (both financial and non-financial) established by 
management. This risk assessment allows the Audit Plan to be 
focused, concentrating resources on the areas of greatest need and 
where there will be the best use of audit resources. The work is 
designed to appraise and review :

 the completeness, reliability and integrity of information, both 
financial and operational;

 the systems established to ensure compliance with policies, plans, 
procedures, laws and regulations, i.e. rules established by the 
management of the Council, or externally;

 the means of safeguarding assets;
 the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are 

employed, and whether operations are being carried out as planned 
and objectives and goals are being met.

7.3 The risk based planning methodology utilised to prepare the audit plan 
assesses each system on eight risk elements :

 Monetary / financial value;
 Volume of transactions;
 System factors – stability / type of processing application / 

complexity of regulations and / or processing;
 Managerial and control environment / previous assurance;
 Incidence / risk of fraud;
 Sensitivity;
 Corporate risks; and
 Time since previous audit.

This approach is linked to a mapping exercise whereby corporate risks 
are mapped to the Audit Plan to ensure they are adequately considered 
during the audit lifecycle.

Page 68



7.4 The annual audit plan for 2017/18 has been created and is attached as 
Appendix 1. As the Internal Audit service is a joint resource across 
both Alliance Councils, and all Alliance services are joint, the most 
efficient method of auditing to take advantage of economies of scale is 
to undertake audits covering both Alliance Councils. However there will 
still be occasions when audits only cover one of the Alliance Councils 
and this is reflected within the Audit Plan. The future audit approach to 
potential challenges to the internal control environment that may result 
from the ongoing development of services will need to be adapted as 
transformation progresses.

7.5 It is planned to supplement the annual audit plan during 2017/18 with 
the purchase of a specialist ICT audit resource to focus on technical 
ICT risks. A small budget is available for this work which will consist of 
an initial needs assessment to facilitate the prioritisation of future ICT 
audits and these will then be planned and undertaken during 2017/18 
and future years utilising available budget(s).

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1
HIGH PEAK BC / STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DC

INTERNAL AUDIT – AUDIT PLAN 2017/18

AUDIT SMDC HPBC ALLIANCE TOTAL
Key Financial Systems
Budgetary Control 10 10
Council Tax 15 15
Creditor Payments 10 10
Housing Benefits 20 20
Housing Rents 15 15
General Ledger 10 10
Non-Domestic Rates 15 15
Payroll 15 15
Recovery 15 15
Sundry Debtors 15 15
Treasury Management 10 10
TOTAL – KEY FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 0 15 135 150

Areas identified within Corporate Risks
Assets & Facilities 15 15
Capital Contract Management 15 15
ICT-Data Protection/Info Governance 15 15
Housing Strategy 10 10
Housing Stock Management 15 15
Planning Policy 15 15
Regeneration 15 15
Safeguarding Children & Vulnerable Adults 10 10
Strategic Partnerships 10 10
TOTAL – CORPORATE RISKS 0 15 105 120

Areas identified by Internal Audit
Cemeteries 15 15
Conservation 10 10
Corporate Project Management 15 15
Customer Services 15 15
Development Control / S106 / CIL 15 15
Disabled Facilities Grants - Assurance 10 10
Emergency Planning/Business Continuity 15 15
Elections 10 10
Freedom of Information 10 10
Horticulture 15 15
Housing Advice 10 10
Housing Planned Maintenance 15 15
Land Charges 15 15
Legal Services 10 10
Licensing 10 10
Pavilion Gardens 15 15
Payroll Expenses 10 10
Procurement 15 15
TOTAL – AREAS IDENTIFIED BY IA 0 30 200 230

TOTAL PLANNED DAYS 0 60 440 500
Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to Audit & Regulatory Committee

18th May 2017

Appendices Attached - Appendix 1 Audit Reports Issued Between 1st February 
2017 and 30th April 2017
Appendix 2 Internal Audit 2016/17 Progress Information 
as at 30th April 2017
Appendix 3 2015/16 Audit Recommendations 
Implementation

1.        Reason for the Report:

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to 
“undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its 
risk management, control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. In 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Audit 
Manager must report periodically to the Audit Committee on the internal 
audit activity’s performance relative to its plan.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the committee note the progress information contained within this 
report.

TITLE: 2016/17 Internal Audit Periodic Report 
February 2017 to April 2017

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive
Councillor – Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICER: John Leak – Internal Audit Manager

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



3. Executive Summary

3.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise performance information for 
the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2016/17 financial year. This 
includes a breakdown of audits in progress and completed to date, the 
number and classification of recommendations made, agreed and 
where applicable, implemented by management.

3.2 All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to date 100% of 
2016/17 audit recommendations that are due have been implemented. 
Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not 
corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an 
appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor such cases. It 
should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to 
implement agreed recommendations.

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the 
Annual Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective 
use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money.

5. Options and Analysis

5.1 There are no options to consider.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

None.

6.2 Workforce

None.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations

None.

Page 74



6.5 Legal

None.

6.6 Sustainability

None.

6.7 Internal and External Consultation

None.

6.8 Risk Assessment

None.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

None N/A John Leak
Audit Manager
Tel: (01538) 395695
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 75

mailto:john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


7. Background and Detail

7.1 Introduction

7.1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise performance information for 
the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2016/17 financial year. This 
includes a breakdown of audits in progress and completed to date, the 
number and classification of recommendations made, agreed and 
where applicable, implemented by management.

7.1.2 The work of the internal audit service is primarily based upon an annual 
risk assessed audit plan, which for the financial year 2016/17 was 
agreed by this Committee at the 25th May 2016 meeting. The Internal 
Audit service also carry out work outside of the audit plan for which a 
contingency is usually built in. This unplanned work consists mainly of 
internal control consultancy work and special investigations into 
suspected fraud and irregularity.

7.2 Audits Reports Issued & Status of Agreed Recommendations

7.2.1 A summary of the Audit Reports issued during the period 1st February 
2017 to 30th April 2017 is shown in the table below. Further details of 
these audits outlining key issues and strengths and improvements are 
shown in Appendix 1.

RecommendationsService Audit
High 
Risk

Medium 
Risk

Low 
Risk

Assurance

Finance & 
Procurement

Treasury 
Management

0 0 1 Substantial

Assets Assets & 
Facilities

0 4 3 Limited

Organisational 
Development & 
Transformation

Human 
Resources

0 1 9 Satisfactory

Operational 
Services

Sports 
Development

0 0 0 Substantial

Operational 
Services

Housing 
Repairs & 
Maintenance

0 2 11 Satisfactory

Assets Commercial 
Properties

0 3 4 Satisfactory

Democratic & 
Community 
Services

Corporate 
Governance

0 0 7 Satisfactory

Finance & 
Procurement

Budgetary 
Control

0 0 0 Substantial

Page 76



7.2.2 A further breakdown of all of the audits in progress and completed 
during the current financial year including the current status of audit 
recommendations is detailed in Appendix 2.  All audit 
recommendations have been agreed, and to date 100% of 2016/17 
audit recommendations that are due have been implemented. Where 
deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not corrected, 
Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an appropriate 
manner and they will continue to monitor such cases. It should be noted 
that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to implement agreed 
recommendations.

7.2.3 Councillors will note that in addition to every individual audit 
recommendation being allocated a risk, every audit completed has 
been given an ‘assurance opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s 
assessment of the internal control environment. These assurance 
opinions inform the annual audit opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. The control 
levels are defined as follows:

Control 
Level

Definition

Substantial There is a robust framework of controls designed to achieve 
the objectives and controls are consistently applied.

Satisfactory There is a sufficient framework of controls which for the 
most part, are consistently applied.  However, weakness in 
the design or inconsistent application of controls within a 
few areas put achievement of particular objectives at risk.

Limited Weaknesses in the system or the level of non compliance 
with controls in a number of areas are such to put the 
system objectives at risk.

Unsatisfactory There is a significant breakdown in the framework of 
controls, which leaves the system open to significant abuse 
or error.

7.2.4 Appendix 3 is a summary of recommendations made in the previous 
financial year 2015/16 implemented to date. This information will keep 
Councillors informed of progress made to ensure that all previous year 
audit recommendations are implemented. Due dates for implementation 
of some previous year recommendations will fall into 2016/17 and 
beyond depending on when the audit was carried out so this appendix 
will show when those recommendations become due for 
implementation. In due course, all recommendations will fall due and it 
will be possible to clearly identify which recommendations have not 
been implemented.

7.2.5 To date 99% of 2015/16 audit recommendations that are due have 
been implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been 
identified and not corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be 
resolved in an appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor 
such cases.  It should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant 
Managers to implement agreed recommendations.

Page 77



7.3 Audits In Progress

7.3.1 The status of audits that are currently in progress is shown in the table 
below.

Service Audit Status
Finance & 
Procurement

Sundry 
Debtors

Audit complete. Management response.

Finance & 
Procurement

Payroll Audit complete. Management response.

Finance & 
Procurement

Recovery Audit complete. Quality control stage.

Finance & 
Procurement

NNDR Audit complete. Quality control stage.

Customer 
Services

Housing 
Strategy

Audit complete. Quality control stage.

Visitor Services Parking Audit in Progress.

Finance & 
Procurement

Creditor 
Payments

Audit in Progress.

Finance & 
Procurement

General 
Ledger

Audit in Progress.

Customer 
Services

Housing 
Benefits

Audit in Progress.

Finance & 
Procurement

Council Tax Audit in Progress.

Customer 
Services

Postal 
Arrangements

Audit in Progress.

7.4 Progress against Audit Plan
7.4.1 The 2016/17 financial year has seen steady progress against planned 

audits and all of the audits in progress or nearing completion as 
detailed in 7.3 above will be completed soon. A satisfactory year end 
position will therefore be achieved.

Page 78



7.4.2 Current key progress information is summarised in the following table, 
excluding unplanned work unless otherwise stated:

Summary Progress Information to 30th April 2017
Percentage of Audit Plan completed / substantially 
completed

75%

Percentage of Audit Plan In Progress 15%
Number of recommendations made (including unplanned 
work)

167

Percentage of recommendations agreed with Service 
Managers (including unplanned work)

100%

Percentage of recommendations implemented within 
agreed timescale (including unplanned work)

100%

7.4.3 Should recommendations have not been agreed, compensating 
controls exist or service managers have accepted the risk / inefficiency 
of the current system for the benefit of service delivery.

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED BETWEEN 1st FEBRUARY 2017 &
30th APRIL 2017

Treasury Management
Assurance Level

Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 The Treasury Management Strategy is 

updated and reviewed annually and 
performance is regularly reported to 
committee.

 Sampling of investments made during 2016 
confirmed that all had been processed and 
authorised correctly.

 There have been no new borrowings during 
2016.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Member Training 1
Total 1

Page 81



APPENDIX 1

Assets & Facilities
Assurance Level

Assurance: LIMITED
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide limited assurance that 
risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and Objectives 
section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 The preferred options for the future 

provision of property management services 
should be finalised at the earliest 
opportunity. 

 Procedures detailing the monitoring of the 
contract for the provision of property 
management services should be 
appropriately documented.

 All current lessees of council buildings 
should have an up to date lease agreement 
which is subject to regular review to ensure 
that its terms remain appropriate.

 The master key holding listing and 
procedures for emergency callouts should 
be updated and periodically reviewed.

 Complaints are appropriately handled in 
accordance with the corporate procedures.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Property Management Contract 2
Leases 1
Repairs Reporting 1
Building Security 1 1
Car Parking 1
Total 4 2 1

Page 82



APPENDIX 1

Human Resources
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 Adequate documentary evidence should be 

retained for all recruited posts to confirm 
compliance with the recruitment and 
selection procedures.

 Flexible working toolkits have been 
developed and trialled across the Alliance.

 The P.E.P. appraisal scheme has been 
implemented.

 Redundancies were dealt with in 
accordance with the approved schemes 
and payments accurately calculated. 

 The Business Partnering approach has 
been implemented to ensure Managers are 
provided with sufficient guidance and 
assistance in HR matters.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Human Resources Framework 1
Sickness Monitoring 1
Policies and Guidance Notes 1
Staff Survey 1
Recording of Information 1
Recruitment 1
Probationary Period 1
Training Providers 1
Disciplinary Hearings 1
Long Service Awards 1
Total 1 8 1

Page 83



APPENDIX 1

Sports Development
Assurance Level

Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 A Sports Strategy has been drafted which is 

due to be presented to members for 
approval within the next few months.

 Derbyshire Sport plays a key role in the 
delivery of the Sports Development 
programme and good relations are in place.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

None
Total

Page 84



APPENDIX 1

Housing Repairs & Maintenance
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 Adequate systems and controls should be 

implemented to ensure that expenditure is 
adequately approved by checking that it is 
necessary for the requirements of the job 
and in accordance with the goods actually 
requisitioned.

 All contractors/suppliers used for providing 
housing repairs and maintenance materials 
and services should be reviewed to ensure 
that appropriate quotes / tender exercises 
have been undertaken and documented in 
accordance with Procurement Procedure 
Rules.

 There are sufficient methods for tenants to 
request housing repairs.

 The majority of repairs are completed within 
the timescale set based on the priority of 
the job.

 The tools inventory is promptly updated.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Logging of Job Requests 1
Right to Buy Repairs 2
Performance Indicators 1
Measures Jobs 1 1
Unplanned Jobs 1
Post Inspection Process 1
Job Costs 1
Tenant Recharges 2
Procurement Procedure Rules 1
Tool Inventory 1
Total 2 7 4

Page 85



APPENDIX 1

Commercial Properties
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 All rental amounts should be collected in 

accordance with the lease agreement and 
procedures implemented to ensure that 
new/amended agreements are promptly 
updated to the system.

 All current lessees should have an up to 
date lease agreement which is subject to 
regular review to ensure that its terms 
remain appropriate.

 Procedures should be introduced to ensure 
that all properties are appropriately insured.

 Occupancy levels and interest in Council 
owned business units remains high.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

Procedure Notes 1
Leases 2 2 1
Insurance 1
Total 3 3 1

Page 86



APPENDIX 1

Corporate Governance
Assurance Level

Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 A new Committee Management System has 

recently been implemented.  This will give 
staff, members of the public access to all 
Councillors details, minutes and agendas, 
upcoming meetings and more.  

 HPBC published a four year Corporate Plan 
in 2015 clearly setting out key 
objectives/aims.

 Service Plans are currently being developed 
across the Alliance which clearly reflect 
corporate objectives.  

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

The Constitution 1
Code of Corporate Governance 1
Legality Guide 1
Notification of Interests 1
Gifts and Hospitality 1
Complaints 1
Member Meeting Attendance 1
Total 7

Page 87



APPENDIX 1

Budgetary Control

Assurance Level

Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.

Key Findings

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements
 The 2016/17 budget was approved by the 

Corporate Select Committee in February 
2016 and uploaded into Integra on 1st April 
2016.

 Budgets are reported to Committee in 
accordance with the budget setting 
timetable, and the overall budget position is 
monitored promptly and regularly 
throughout the year.

Summary of Recommendations

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below: 

High Medium LowDescription
R A R A R A

None
Total

 

Page 88



APPENDIX 2
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2016/17 PROGRESS INFORMATION AS AT 30th APRIL 2017

AUDIT TOTAL 
RECOMMENDATIONS

HIGH RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

MEDIUM RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

LOW RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

ASSURANCE OPINION / 
COMMENTS

Regulatory Added 
value

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Housing Rents 5 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 5 0 0 Satisfactory
Democratic Services 11 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 4 4 Satisfactory
CCTV 9 1 0 0 0 2 1 1 8 6 6 Satisfactory
Right to Buy 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 5 Satisfactory
Taxi Licensing 15 8 1 1 1 6 6 6 16 15 15 Limited
Bank Contract 5 1 0 0 0 3 2 2 3 1 1 Satisfactory
Tourism 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 1 1 Satisfactory
Capital Accounting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Substantial
Street Cleansing 7 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 7 3 3 Satisfactory
Social Media 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 Satisfactory
Housing Tenancy Allocation 6 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 5 4 4 Satisfactory
Bacs Transmissions 8 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 7 1 1 Satisfactory
Food Safety 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 Satisfactory
Grounds Maintenance 10 1 0 0 0 3 2 2 8 3 3 Satisfactory
Performance Management 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 Substantial
Parking Work In Progress
Assets & Facilities 6 1 0 0 0 4 0 0 3 0 0 Limited
Human Resources 9 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 9 4 4 Satisfactory
Sports Development 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Substantial
Risk Management 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 2 2 Satisfactory
Treasury Management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 Substantial
Housing Repairs & Maintenance 9 4 0 0 0 2 0 0 11 0 0 Satisfactory
Commercial Properties 6 1 0 0 0 3 0 0 4 0 0 Satisfactory
Corporate Governance 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 Satisfactory
Sundry Debtors Management Response
General Ledger Work In Progress
Recovery Quality Control Stage
Budgetary Control 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Substantial
Payroll Management Response
Creditor Payments Work In Progress
NNDR Quality Control Stage
Housing Benefits Work In Progress
Council Tax Work In Progress
Postal Arrangements Work In Progress
Housing Strategy Quality Control Stage
TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 167 1 31 135
ACTION TAKEN TO DATE 1 1 12 12 51 51

Risk Class
High Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly.

Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations / 
Policies and Procedures. 

Medium Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 
breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision.

Added 
Value

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit 
to either the user or the customer.

Low Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets, 
information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision.

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2015/16 AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS IMPLEMENTATION

AUDIT TOTAL 
RECOMMENDATIONS

HIGH RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

MEDIUM RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

LOW RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS

ASSURANCE OPINION / 
COMMENTS

Regulatory Added 
value

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed)

Due to 
date

Actioned 
to date

Housing Rents 6 0 0 0 0 3 3 3 3 3 3 Satisfactory
Health & Safety 5 0 0 0 0 3 3 3 2 2 2 Satisfactory
Transparency Agenda 12 1 0 0 0 9 8 8 4 4 4 Limited
Leasing 4 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 1 0 0 Limited
Safeguarding Children & VA 6 1 0 0 0 3 3 3 4 4 4 Satisfactory
Markets 7 0 0 0 0 2 1 1 5 4 4 Satisfactory
Elections 11 4 0 0 0 3 3 3 12 12 12 Satisfactory
VAT 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 4 4 Satisfactory
Waste Collection 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 5 Satisfactory
Development Control 5 1 0 0 0 3 3 3 3 1 0 Satisfactory
Enforcement 19 4 0 0 0 3 3 3 20 15 15 Satisfactory
Env Health Licensing 6 2 0 0 0 1 1 1 7 5 5 Satisfactory
Pavilion Gardens TIC/Shop/Gallery 14 3 0 0 0 6 5 5 11 11 11 Limited
ICT Asset Management 6 0 0 0 0 3 3 3 3 3 3 Satisfactory
Housing Agency 3 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 3 2 2 Satisfactory
Insurance 7 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 7 5 5 Satisfactory
General Ledger 10 1 0 0 0 2 2 2 9 9 9 Satisfactory
Peak District Partnership 5 2 0 0 0 3 2 2 4 3 3 Satisfactory
Treasury Management 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 3 Satisfactory
Procurement 9 3 0 0 0 3 2 2 9 5 5 Satisfactory
Budgetary Control 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 Substantial
Regeneration 4 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 4 4 4 Satisfactory
Carelink 6 2 0 0 0 1 1 1 7 4 4 Satisfactory
Payroll 9 3 0 0 0 1 1 1 11 11 11 Satisfactory
Sundry Debtors 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 4 Satisfactory
Recovery 10 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 9 7 7 Satisfactory
Creditor Payments 6 1 0 0 0 3 3 3 4 4 4 Satisfactory
Housing Strategy 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 Satisfactory
NNDR 6 3 0 0 0 2 2 2 7 7 7 Satisfactory
Council Tax 8 2 0 0 0 2 2 2 8 8 8 Satisfactory
Capital Contract Management 7 1 0 0 0 3 3 3 5 5 5 Satisfactory
Housing Planned Maintenance 6 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 4 4 3 Satisfactory
Housing Benefits 6 1 0 0 0 5 5 5 2 2 2 Limited
One Stop Shops 10 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 10 10 Satisfactory

TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 274 0 73 201
ACTION TAKEN TO DATE 0 0 63 63 174 172

Key:
Risk Class
High Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly.

Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations / 
Policies and Procedures. 

Medium Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 
breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision.

Added 
Value

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit 
to either the user or the customer.

Low Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets, 
information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision.

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 93

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Planned Audit Fee for 2017/18
	5 External Audit Update
	6 Review of Risk Management Strategy
	7 Risk Management Update
	8 Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2017/18
	Internal Audit Annual Plan 2017-18 Appendix 1

	9 2016/17 Internal Audit Periodic Report February 2017 to April 2017
	Internal Audit Periodic Report - Appendix 1 - Summary
	Internal Audit Periodic Report - Appendix 2 - Progress Report
	Internal Audit Periodic Report - Appendix 3 - Implementation

	11 To approve the Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting

